TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Minutes of the 2017 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
(Summary Translation)

Time: 09:00am, June 16, 2017 (Friday)
Place: TECO Chung-Li Plant
No. 11, An Dong Road, Industrial Zone, Chung-Li, Taoyuan City

Shares represented at the meeting:

The total issued shares of the Company is 2,002,692,886, net of shares without
voting rights 22,365,800, the total number of valid issued shares of the Company is
1,980,327,086. A total of 1,430,002,407 valid issued shares of the Company were
presented at the above meeting (including a total of 1,125,493,786 shares were
presented by electronic voting), representing 72.21% of the above total valid issued
shares of the Company.

Chairman: Chwen-Jy Chiu (Chairman)

Attendance: Chao-Kai Liu (Managing Director), Yu-Ren Huang (Managing Director),
Cheng-Tsung Huang (Managing Director), Mao-Hsiung Huang (Director), Po-Chih,
Huang (Director), Shih-Chien Yang(Director), Ming-Feng Yeh (Director),
Hsien-Sheng Kuo(Director), Yung-Hsiang Chang(Director), Hong-Hsiang Lin(
Director), Chien-Yuan, Lin (Independent Director & Managing Director, member of
Audit Committee), Ting-Wong Cheng (Independent Director, member of Audit
Committee), Jing-Shown Wu (Independent Director, member of Audit Committee)

Observer:
Attorney, Steven S. K. Chen; Certificated Public Accountant, Audrey Tseng &
Ping-Chiun Chih

Recorder: Doreen Lin, Grace Yang

1. Meeting called to order
As the share of shareholders and representatives exceeded quorum, chairman
called the meeting to order.

2. Address by the Chairman

3. Reports
3.1 Business Report for 2016 (please see Appendix 1)
3.2 Inspection Report of Audit Committee for 2016 (please see Appendix 2)
3.3 Remuneration distribution to employees and directors for 2016
Explanatory note

In 2016, income before tax is NT$ 3,622,424 thousands, and remuneration to
employees is proposed to be NT$ 283,999 thousands, whilst remuneration to
directors is proposed to be NT$ 125,333 thousands. The remuneration would be
distributed in cash.



3.4 Amendment to Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles (please see
Meeting Agenda)

3.5 Amendment to Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles
(please see Meeting Agenda)

3.6 Amendment to Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles
(please see Meeting Agenda)

4. Ratification

Proposal 1:

Business Report and Financial Statements for 2016 (Proposed by the Board of
Directors)

Explanatory note:

1. The Board of Directors entrusted certified public accountants Audrey Tseng and
Dexter Chang with PricewaterhouseCoopers to audit and certify the Business
Report and Financial Statements for 2016 (including consolidated financial
statements), both of which were subsequently inspected by Audit Committee and
are hereby submitted for ratification.

2. Please see Appendix 1 for “Business Report” and Appendix 3 for Auditors’ Report
and Financial Statements of Year 2016.

Resolution:

After being voted by a total of 1,422,048,163 shares presented (has been deducted
7,954,244 shares without voting right), a total of 1,247,751,230 shares voted “for”
(including a total of 951,196,853 shares were presented by electronic voting), a total
of 390,356 shares voted “against” (including a total of 390,356 shares were
presented by electronic voting), and a total of 173,906,577 shares abstained from
voting (including a total of 173,906,577 shares were presented by electronic voting).
The percentage of approval represented 87.74% of the total voting rights of
shareholders in attendance.

Proposal 2:
Distribution of 2016 profits (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory note:

1. The board of directors plans to appropriate NT$1,762,369,740 from allocable
earnings in 2016 for dividend payout, capable of paying NT$0.88 of cash dividend
per share, which, though, will be rounded off, leaving out decimal fraction.

2. Subject to the approval by the General Shareholders Meeting, it is proposed that
the ex-dividend date and the distribution date shall be determined by the Board of
Directors authorized to do so.

3. Please see Appendix 4 for the detailed profit distribution plan.

Resolution:

After being voted by a total of 1,422,048,163 shares presented (has been deducted
7,954,244 shares without voting right), a total of 1,254,975,771 shares voted “for”
(including a total of 958,421,394 shares were presented by electronic voting), a total
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of 627,182 shares voted “against” (including a total of 627,182 shares were
presented by electronic voting), and total of 166,445,210 shares abstained from
voting (including a total of 166,445,210 shares were presented by electronic voting).
The percentage of approval represented 88.25% of the total voting rights of
shareholders in attendance.

The proposal was approved as proposed.

5. Discussion:

Proposal 1:
Amendment to Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets

Explanatory note:

1. According to Financial Supervisory Commission No. 1060001296, February 9,

2017, the company propose to revise the related measures of Procedure for

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.

2. For the comparison between the revision and the original, please refer to
Appendix 5

Resolution:

After being voted by a total of 1,422,048,163 shares presented (has been deducted
7,954,244 shares without voting right), a total of 1,255,143,938 shares voted “for”
(including a total of 958,589,561 shares were presented by electronic voting), a total
of 419,616 shares voted “against” (including a total of 419,616 shares were
presented by electronic voting), and a total of 166,484,609 shares abstained from
voting (including a total of 166,484,609 shares were presented by electronic voting).
The percentage of approval represented 88.26% of the total voting rights of
shareholders in attendance.

The proposal was approved as proposed.

6. Extempore Motions:
None

7. Meeting Adjourned: 09:28 AM

Attachments

1. Business Report for 2016

Inspection Report of Audit Committee for 2016
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for 2016
Distribution of 2016 Profits

The comparison between the revision and the original of Procedure for
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets
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Appendix 1

Business Report

Dear Shareholders,

Stuck in "low-growth" trap, the global economy declined by 2.4% in 2016, the worst
performance since the global financial tsunami. Strength of recovery in the U.S.,
Japan, and Europe failed to meet expectation and growth in China and emerging
economies slowed down, which, plus uncertainty resulting from Brexit, dampened
demand on the electric-machinery market. However, thanks to years of effort in
energy conservation, carbon abatement, smart application, and automation, the
company still managed to take advantage of new business opportunities, thereby
retaining steady profits.

A. Review of Business Performance in 2016

Analysis of the company’s business performance in 2016 follows:
a. Parent Company
Unit: NT$ thousand

2016 2015 Change
Sales revenue 20,274,047 21,809,717 (7.04%)
Operating profit 1,615,152 1,617,491 (0.14%)
Profit for the year 3,481,480 3,177,291 9.57%

Regarding revenue, benefited from replacement demand and energy-performance
subsidies, sales of air conditioner expanded further in 2016, when revenue of power
business also grew substantially, thanks to income listed quarterly, in line with
progress in the construction, from major engineering projects. Revenues from other
businesses, though, dropped, due to decline in global demand for infrastructural
projects, shrinking investments in oil- and mineral-related lines, insufficient orders
and languid sales of electric-machinery products. The company's overall revenue
dropped by 7% in 2016.

Due to increased shares of higher-margin custom products and variable-frequency
products, the company's gross margin advanced by one percentage point in the year.
Meanwhile, operating expense decreased by NT$100 million, thanks to continuous
rationalization of personnel and other expenses. As a result, operating income only
dropped slightly. As for non-operating income and expense, the company saw
investment returns, thanks to increased investment returns from the merger of
Century Development Corp. and the company's Italian subsidiary Motovario, plus
income from disposal of stakes in Straits Construction Investment (Holdings) and
Hangzhou Xizi-lUK Parking System Co.,Ltd. Overall net profit grew by 9.57%.

As for R&D, the company successfully developed a number of new products,
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including large-scale water-recycling pump motor, medium-voltage
variable-frequency motor for industry-grade chiller, IE4 motor for Japan and China,
anti-dust blast motor, netcom inverter, cloud-end EMS, and R32-coolant series
models. Thanks to its heavy R&D investments, the company won Taiwan Excellent
Award for six items and 23 domestic and foreign patents.

b. Consolidated Financial Statements
Unit: NT$ thousand

2016 2015 Change
Sales revenue 49,923,836 48,598,573 3%
Operating profit 4,189,481 3,787,627 11%
Profit for the year 4,036,998 3,514,116 15%
Total comprehensive 4,360,290 560,158 678%
income for the year

Consolidated sales revenue grew by 3% in 2016, due to the acquisition of Century
Development and Motovario, while Operating profit grew by 11%. The growth of
Unrealized gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets resulted into higher
Total comprehensive income for the year. Overall, Profit for the year grew by 15% and
Total comprehensive income for the year grew by 678%.

B. Outline of 2017 Business Plan

Major domestic and foreign forecast bodies predict that the global economy will grow
by 2.4-3.3% in 2017, higher than 2016. International prices of raw materials, including
oil and metal, have stabilized, helping oil/gas and mineral customers to attain steady
revenue growth, which will benefit the company's sales. Taiwan's economy will also
perform better than 2016, with growth forecast reaching 1.5-1.8%. In addition, the
government is pushing "accelerated transformation of industrial structure" and
"expansion of infrastructural investments" programs, boosting domestic investments
and growth, which will benefit the company's business for electric-machinery
products and engineering projects.

In 2017, the company will develop around a number of axes, including sales of
systematic products, simplification and improvement of existing product lines, and
continuing dedication to smart products, automated production equipment, and other
related products, such as G2-servo electric machinery, so as to enhance the
company's overall product competitiveness. In addition, the company will step into
the realm of PV ESCO, installing PV panels on the roofs of the group's factories, on
top of micro grids and smart energy management system, key applications for smart
city, which have been developed by the company. Regarding electric machinery, the
company will roll out IP66 water- and dust-proof anti-blast motor and E510s 1P20
inverters, which have obtained EU functional-safety certification. As for home
appliances, the company will launch air conditioners featuring CSPF-grade energy
performance. The aforementioned new products will inject fresh growth momentum
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for the group. Meanwhile, the company will invest further in India, Africa, and ASEAN,
consolidating overseas business network and expanding global deployment.

The company has been granted the golden award of Taiwan Corporate Sustainability
Awards (TCSA) for the TOP50 category for three years in a row, and the corporate
citizen award by Commonwealth magazine, in addition to top 5% in
corporate-governance evaluation. As an advocate for sustainable development in the
electric-machinery industry, the company will, in adherence to its integrity-based
management concept and conformance to the global current of energy conservation
and carbon abatement, dedicate to the development of smart environment-friendly
products and march towards the goal of becoming a global corporate guidepost,
thereby creating maximum benefits for shareholders and paying back our
shareholders and investing public, in return for their long-term support and
patronage.

TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd



Appendix 2

Inspection Report of Audit Committee
(This English version is only a translation of the Chinese version.)

The Audit Committee has duly inspected and approved the financial statements for 2016
(include consolidated financial statements), the business report and proposed profit
distribution plan prepared and proposed by the Board of Directors, with the financial
statements having been audited and certified by Pricewaterhouse Coopers, hereby submit
this report pursuant to Article 14 of Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the
Company Act.

To

General Shareholders Meeting 2017

TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd

Audit Committee Convener : Ting-Wong, Cheng

Date: March 24, 2017



Appendix 3

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To TECO Electne & Machmery Co., Ltd.

Opinien

We have audited the accompanymye parent company only balance sheets of Teco Elecinc & Machmery
Co., Ltd as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the relsted parent company ooly statements of
comprehensive income, of changes m equity and of cash flows for the vears then ended. and notes to the
parent company only financial statement=, meluding 3 summary of sigmficant accounting policies.

In our opimion, based on owr audits and the reports of other mdependent accountants, the parent company
only financal statements present fairly, m all matenal respects, the financial posgion of  Teco Elecine
& Machinary Co, Ltd. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and therr financial performance and cash
flows for the vears then ended, in conformity with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial
Stalements by Securilies [ssuers” and the Infermational Finaneial Beportimg Standards, Infernational
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and 5IC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Comomssion.

Basis for opinien

We conducted our awdits in sccordance with the “Fegulations Governing Awditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and generally accepied auditing standards in the
Fepublic of China (ROC GAAS). Cur responsibilites under those standards are fiwther described i the
Auditor 5 Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia! Siatements section of our report.
We are mdependent of the Company m accordance with the Code of Professional Ethies for Certified
Public Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilifies in accordance with the Code. We beleve that the audit evidence we bhave obtained 1
sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opimeon

Key audit maiters

Eey audtt matters are those matters that, in our professional judzment. were of most sigmficance m our
audit of the consolidated financial statemsents of the cumrent penod. These matters were addrezzed m the
context of owr audit of the parent company only financial statements as a2 whole and, 1n formng our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opimion on these matters.



Revenue recogninion of export sales of motor division

Descrinti
Please refer to MNote 432} of the parent company only financial statements for the accountng poheles
on revemme recogmtion Motor dmision handles the mamifactwing and sales of vanous machimmery,
equipment and motors. The chents of motor drasion are from Chma Amenca, Sowth-East Asia and
Europe and the sales terms vary for different chents, and it exist m subsidianes(hsted as mvestments
accounted for under equuty method). Thus, we consider the reverme recognihon of motor divasion a key
adit matter.

How our auds addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key andit muatter:

1. Checkmg the mternal controls over sales revenue recogmiion of motor division to assess the
effectivensess of the imnternal control process.

2. Selected sammples of export sales reverme transactions of motor dvision to examine whether the
export sales recogmized actually existed.

Investments accounted for under equity method-impairment asseszment of preminm generated

from the acquizition of subsidiaries

Descrinti
Motovano 5. p A 1 located m Italy, and 15 engaged 1n the manufactunng and sales of gear reducers and
other power transfer equpment. Motovano 5 p A, 15 considered a munimum cash-generating unit of Teco
Electne & Machimery Co., Ltd . As of December 31, 2016, the balance of mvestments accounted for
under equity method was $5,012,878.000. Please refer to Note 4(19) of the parent company only
financial statements for the accounting pohicy on the mpanment assessment of goodwill and Note 5(2)
for the uncertamty of the accounting estimate regarding imparment of mvestment m premmm. TECO
Electne & Machinery Co_, Ltd. assesses the imparment of mvestment m premmm using the recoverabls
amount generated from the cash flow forecast discounted of reasonable discount rate.



The aforesawd recoverable amount meludes several assumptions such as the discount rate used and
the preparation of financial projections to estimuate the cash flows for the next five years. The dizcount
rates and financial projechions relating to the fubhore operations of Motovario 5p A are subject to
manzgement mdzment whaich have a sizmficant mpact on the mezsurement of the recoverable amount,
thus affecting the resulis of the impairment assessment. Accordingly, we consider management’s
impaiment assessment of mvestments accounted for under equity method-impairment assessment of
premmum generated from the acquisition of subsidiaries a kevit matter.

How our audd addressed the matter and
We performed the following audit procedures on the above kev audit matters:
1. Inspecting whether the valuation model use in the entity's industry and environment

2. Inspecting whether the future cash flows of valuation model 15 in accordance with Motovario %.p. A's

operation plhn, and reviewmg the resulis of operation plan prepared by management in the past.

3. Exaluating the reasomablemess of major assumptions (meludmg the expected growth rate and
discount rate) used in the model

4, Assessing the sensitivaty amalvsis of management's fubore cash flows for the above sizmficant
assumpiions and confommg whether management has adequately addressed the possible mmpact of
the estimated uncertamty of the mpanment assessment.

Busines: combmation - acguisition of Century Development Corporation

0 .
Please refer to Mote 4(33) for accountmg policies on business combmaton. As stated m Note 8(32) of
the parent company only financial statements, the TECO Electnie & Machinerv Co., Lid. acqumed
12.12% of the ordmary shares of Century Development Corporation for cash of $462.233,000 m
February 2016. Includmg the previously held 40.63% stake m the TECOD Electne & Machinery Co., Lid.,
the tofal holdings of the Company increaszed to 32.75% and accordmgly, the Company obtamed contiol
over Cenhiry Development Corporation. Century Dievelopment Corporation 15 engaged m domestic and
foreign mdustiial areas and sife myvestment and development meluding of consulting, plannmg,
development manzgement and leasing usmess. In determunmz the fair vahie of the real property and
land night held from the usmess combmation, menzgement has commissioned a2 valation expert to
evaluate the fawr vahie and prepare a fair value allocation report, which 1= measured and assessed on the
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acqusition The identfiable assets of the Company and the habilihes assumed, which will be completed
within one year after the business combination. In additon, the transaction 15 a2 phased merger of
enterprizes. The Company m accordance with the far value of the acgmsiion date to measure i=
previously beld by the acquirer's mierest. As Century Development Corporetion’s common stock 15 not
quoted m aciive market, the management departmeent of the Department of external experts to evaluate
the assessment of the fan value of the way, The evaluation of the fanr value of the common stock m the
absence of the actve market quotation invekbes the judzment results and the evaluation results have a
sigmficant effect on the valuaton of the business combimation. Thus, we consider the valation of sad
acquisifion a key audit matter.

How our audd addressed the matter

Ve performed the following audit procedures on the zbove kev audit matters:

1. Checking acqusihon confract and cerfificate of proceeds paid fo ascerfain acouracy of counter
whether the party and cash amount details.

2. Checking the record process for the acourzey of accounting process of acgmathon that divided mto
saveral steps.

3. Assessmg the acourzey of parameter and caleulation, and the approach that menagement used m
evaluating the fair value of Cenbury Dievelopment Corporzhon.

4. Aszezsmg the quabifications of the monazement commrttes in appoimting the valuation experts, and
evaluating the appropriatensss of the parameters and models used.

Other matter — audit ef other independent acconuntants

As deseribed in Mote 6(8) to the parent company only financial statements, we did not audit the finaneial
statements of certam investes companies accounted for under the equity method. These mvestments
amounted to § 4,037,283 000 and § 8,265,099 000, constitutmg 6% and 12% of the related total assets
as of December 31, 2016 and 2013, respectrvely, and the comprehensive mmcome amounting to $
60,193,000 and 5 290,337.000, constiatmg 2% and 81% of the total conprehensive income for the vears
ended then ended. The financial statements of these myvestes compames were audited by other anditors
whose reports thereon have been finmshed to us and ouwr opimon expressed herein, insofar as if relates
to the amounts melnded in these financial statements and the information disclosed m Mote 13 are based
solely on the audits of the other independent zccountants.
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Responsilihines of management and the Board of Directors for the parent company
only financial statements

Manapement is responsible for the preparation and far presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securitics Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Inferpretations, and SIC Infermretzhons as endorsed by the Fmancial Superisory
Copmw=sion, and for such mmfermnal confrol as mensgement defermmnes 1= necessary to enable the
preparztion of consohdated financial statements that are free from mater] msstatement, whether due
to fraud or ermor

In preparng the parent company only financial statements, manamement 15 responsible for assessmg the
Company’s ability o continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the goins concemn basis of accountme unless management erther miends to houidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no reabstic altematre but to do so.

The Board of Directors, including audil commiltes, sre responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financizl reporiing process.

Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financiel

sfaremenrs

Chr objectives are to obtam reasonzble asswrance about whether the parent company only financial

statements a5 a whole are free fom mater] mmsstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an

awditor’s report that includes cur opinion, Reasonable asswance 15 2 lugh level of asnmance, but 15 not

a guarantes that an zudit conducted m accordance with ROC GAAS will abarays defect 2 material

msstatement when # exists. Misstatements can anse from frawd or eror and are comsdered moterial 1f

mmdnidually or m the aggregate, theyv could reasonzbly be expected to mfluence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consohdated finameial statements.

Az part of an audit m accordance with BOC GAAS, we exercise professional mdement and mamiam

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the nsks of matenal mmsstaterment of the parent conmpany enly financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emor, desien and perform audit procedures responsme to thosa
rizks, and obtain audit evidence that 15 suffictent and appropriate to provide a hases for our opmon.
The rek of not defecting a nateral misstatement resulimg from fiand 1= kgher than for one
resulting from emwor, a frapd Doy mohe collewon forgery, mtentional  omssons,
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misrepresentafion=. or the ovemde of infemnal control.

Obtain an understandmng of mternal control relevant to the audst m order to desizn andit procedures
that are appropriate m the cooumstances, but not for the parpose of expressing an opimon on the
effectiveness ol the Company's intermal confral,

Evaluate the approprnateness of accounfing pohcies used and the reasonableness of accounting
Conchude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obiamed, whether a3 matenal uncertaindy esosts related o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compary's ahility to continue as a gomg
concern. If we conchide that a material uncertamfy exsts, we are required to draw attention m our
auditar’s repost to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements o, if such
disclosures are madequate, to modify our opmon. Our conchrsions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up o the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the
Conpany to cease to conhimme as @ EolnE COnCEITL

Evaluate the overall presentation struchme and content of the paremt company only financial
statemments, meludmy the disclosures, and whether the consobdated financial statements represent
the underbymg fransactions and events I 3 mammer that achieves fir presentation.

Obtain suffiment appropriate audit evidence regardmg the financial mformehon of the entities or
usiness actrrties within the Company to express an opimon on the parent company only financial
statemments. We are responsible for the domechion, supervision and performence of the group audidt.
We remain solely responmible for our andit opmmon.

We comommcate with the Board of Directors regardmg, among other matters, the planned scope and
tmmg of the auds and sigmficant audit findmzs, meluding any sigmficant deficiencies m misrmal
control that we dentify durmg our audst.

We also provide the Board of Dectors wath a statemsent that we have comphed with relevant ethical
requrements regarding mdependence, and to comomimcate with thern all relationchips and other matters
that may reasonzably be thought to bear on our mdependence. and where applicable. related saferuards.
From the matters commmmicated with the Board of Directors, we deternune those matters that were of
most sigmficance m the audt of the consohidated fmancial statements of the ourent perod and are
therelore the key awdit maiters. We desenibe these mablers in our suditor s report unless law or regulation

prechides pubhe disclosure about the matter or when, m extremely rare corumetances, we deterrmmne
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that a matter should not be commumcated 1 our report because the adverse consequences of domg so
wonld rezsonably be expected to owtweigh the public mterest benefits of such commmmecation.

PricenaterbonseCoopers, Tarwran
March 24 2017

ThEa-:::ncu;ammsﬁnmmlmmmﬁ.remmmdaim;n:mﬁeﬁnmnﬂpumanmdmhnfnpamﬂmmﬂmh
flows in accordance with acocounting principles genarally accepted In coumimies and jorisdictons other than the Bepublic of
China Heamﬂ:dawmmﬁmdmrﬁcammeﬁmﬂrnfcm poverning the audit of such Snancial statements
ey differ from these generally accepted o counfriss and murisdictons ather thamn the Repablic of China, Accordinsly, the
acconpanying francal statements and report of independent accoumtants are not misnded for use by these who are oot
inforrned about the accounting principles o andimg standards pemerally accepted in the Fepublic of Chire and their
applications in pracice.
As the financial statements are the responsitalit: of the menagement, PricewaterbonseCoopers cannot ocept aoy Labiliny for
the uss of or reliance on, the English fanslaton o for any emmars of mism dersfandmezs that may derive from the Tanslation.
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TECOELECTRIC & MACHINERY C0.. LTD:
PARENT COMPANY ONILY BATANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBEE. 31
(Expressed in thousands of Wew Taiwan dollars, except as otherwize mdicated)
December 31, 20146 December 31 2015
Aszzats Motez L ! " AMOCHT Tk
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) and 8 L4 750,582 1 1,111,218 2
1o Firanrial assets at fir vahe G023

thmough profit or loss - current 30,5312
1150 Mofes receivable, net e 355,078 1 304, 103 1
1160 Motes receivable - related parties 7 335,482 279,145
117 Accounts receivable, net &3 1,540,337 3 1,576,044 2
1180 Accoumts receivable - relaed G(E) and 7

partiss 1,474,155 2 1,556,391 )
1180 Beceivables fom customerson &(7)

constnaction contracts 1,112,235 2 730,164 1
1204 Cithar receivables 58,07 47,622
1210 Crther receivables - related parties  &(8) and 7 251,437 2 1,225,378 2
1303 Tevesdery &8 1,993 682 4 2,941,715 4
1414 Prepayments 15,954 20,063
1470 Cther current assets &(1) and & 259,162 319,424 1
XX Total corrent assets 10,559,153 15 1. 107,285 15

Non-corrent assets

1533 Anailable-for-sale financial assets &(3)

- nom-Curment 5,723,592 . 4,217,347 i)
1550 Iovestments accounted for mder  G(8) and 7

equity mathod 46,963,812 &7 45,359,595 oy
1504 Propenty, plant and equipment &%) and 7 3,643 4581 3 3,877,208 i)
1760 Tovestment propemy - net G100 2,209,428 3 2,059,317 3
1840 Defered income fax assets a7 733, 286 1 624,028 1
1304 Cither pon-cirent assets &lll) 311,565 1 302,935
15XX Total non-carrent assets 50 585,477 85 57480 479 85
133K Total assets 5 0,184,630 100 67,597,714 1

(Continued)
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TECO ELECTRIC & MACHMMERY CO.. LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

IEARS ENDED DECEMEERE 3]
(Expressed i thosands of Wew Tafwan dollars, except a3 otheraiss indicated)

Diegember 31, 20145 December 31, 2015
Liabalities and Equstv Motes AMOUNT e AMCTUNT Y
Current liabilites
2100 Shor-term homowing: (1) 5 477,670 1 ¥ 3,354,683 5
2110 Firancial Habilites af fair valoe  S(133(23)
thronsh profit or loss - cument - . 1,62
2150 Notes payable F.141 - 14,267
2160 Hotzs payable - related partias 7 169,722 - 184,663
2170 Accounts payable 3,406,202 5 2659470 4
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 1,258,472 2 115,348 F]
2180 Payables to customers oo LT ]
ComsiTuchion conmacts 182, 798 - 543,153 -
2200 Cither parpables (20 2,595,904 4 2,485,286 4
2210 Cither payables - relared parties 7 376,716 1 119,214
2230 Current income tax lixbkibes 527 7,153 - 343,526
2350 Provisions for Eabilities - curent 71,778 - 4], 255 -
2300 Crther oorrent liakdlities d(14) 184,135 - 1.719,616 3
213X Total current liabilites 9,025,583 13 12, 436, 835 18
Nom-current Habilities
2530 Carporaiz bonds payable (14 3, 00, 00 4 3.000, 000 5
2340 Long-term bomowings S(1F) 5,600, 5598 i 2,059,706 3
2570 Diaferred income tax Babilie:  §(27) 1,011,652 1 330, 197 1
2600 Cither non-current liabilides S(15) 1,721.230 ] 1.816,834 3
253 Total mon-current liabilites 11,423 48] ] 7. 706,837 12
OO Total Babilities 20,453,063 il 20,133,672 .
Equity
Share capital (17
3110 Shars capital - common stock 20,026,929 Fi] 20,006,525 m
Capital surplus S(18)
3200 Capital smphas 1,671,889 10 T.638,417 11
Fetaiped earmings S{1002T
3310 Legal resemve 5,730,071 8 5.412,342 g
3310 Spedal rssame 3,640,779 5 3,640,770 5
3350 TUnapproprested retained sarmings 11.816,659 17 10,31, 158 15
(riber equity imberest S(20
3400 Cither equity mberest 1,166,773 2 756, 580
3500 Treasury stocks SEIT [ 321, 563) - i 321,563
ool Total equity 45,731, 567 7l 47,464,047 T
Commitments and Contingent a
Liabilities
Sobsequent Events 1
JXIK Total Babilities and equity 5 70,184,630 100 § 67,357,714 10K

The accompanying nobes are an miegral part of these firancial statements.
Sew repart of independent accountants dated March 24, 2007
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[ErOELECTHRIC & “HIMERY 0 LTD
PARENT COMPANY DRLY 5 TATEMESTS (OF [SCOME

| Expessed in chotsands of Mew Tarwis dollirs, el 8 otherwise sdicmsd)

‘eow smded December 31

206 2013
Inenicy Peotes AMOLINT b ] AMOLINT %
4000 Sules revenme G{I1) wmd 7 ¥ JHT m § Il B, TLT 100
3000 (peralang cists WENIENIIN2E) mnd T | 00, %38 | T 16,971 458D | 18
500 Pl Dy il fiAT 3058 3 4,83, 2% 12
30 Lnrealized prodin Tede sades 7 { IR £ | 30,6230 3
R ] Realized ponfit fom sales EX3 3 35,116 3
3950 Ml e ralisg margin , 356 13 4,846, 553 ]
iperalieg eapenses & 1) 290 2i7) amd 7
G100 Sellmg cxpenaes | 1,B52, 294} LI | 1,930,798 { )
200 G and sdminisrave @ Sperme: [ 5T7.574) LV | 565, 761D d k]
E300 R Iy el develiog E ( 634, T36) | T3 5000 3
G000 Toal i ralsig cagenses { 3,124, 404} { 150 o 3.22%.0610 { 131
=1 Ohperaling prafit 1,605, 152 2 1,617,491 T
Ton-spe raling inc o e o3 penas
TG Ot ipacstumies 2N POW 1322 and T 514,376 3 44, Tag 2
) Caber purs, aned hivaes. LELECTE { 464,0500 { I 366,405 ( )
TOs0 Finance oot 24 pmd 7 [ 127,580 I 1356060 { 1)
T Share of profic of subesdiery, swccanie i &)
] poamit venibures pccounted for under
equity method i + 66 j[¥] 1,185, 365 10
T Total nos-opereling incsmne sad
e 10 1,853,953 iy
T Pl befare ine o 1ax 13 3,306 444 16
T lagontie Lan expense W27 { { Iy i 32,1530 | 1)
1200 Frofii fer the year ] 17 5 3,177,291 15
(Mher comproleensive s
Camy of wther comprebensive
income that will s be reclassified o
prudin or less
L] Chber compeshensive inoome, befre i, & 16)
etmanial oeses on defined bers i plans (% . TTLY - 1% 56.36Th -
1330 Share of other comspre e ve ncome o
ES0Ci s Bl oil VERTEES soloumied
for using equcy methad, oom ponencs of
oher comprelersive incoms that wall mot
b reszlssified it prefit of koss | 4, 5550 - Ti6 -
310 Cainj ol other ¢ omprckensive
locks theid wall fisd b s licaliad to
pralin or less | 53,066) - 356400 -
Comy of oiher pridensive loss
that will be reclassahied to profic or ks
236l Caber compPeBeniive inbome, bl tis, & 20)
echimge differeness on aslasm [ 1,164, 215) 6 3,150 d z)
156 Chber compeshensive inoome, before tax, &35 20}
wmilable-forsale fmancal ssecs 1,651,672 i 100,003 1
E3H0 Share of other comprebenaive ncome ol &20)
sulsidiry, ssociaes and paml ventores
mecounied for usder equty method [ 177,296} I 1,524 6ETh 12}
p b Imcome s relabmg to the comporenes of 6200 IT)
e comprelensive incms 9.432 1 B4 -
L3600 Comy of ther ¢ ompeckensive
(sl imcomme thar will be roelassilied
1 pEalit o liss 408, 793 ' 1,103, 5E4D 131
2300 CHbier ¢omipreleensive lass) mome B the
yoemr 3 154 737 I I3 LA13. 2250 13
500 Tital eoimprehensve i ome ler dhe year 5 3,636, 207 19 % 359,066 ]
Earmings jer shase (in dollars) 24
Erkrl Haist carnisgs per e 5 1.7% § 1.60
450 Dalstid earniigs per shase £ .72 % 1. 50

The: aeooimpairying ol we am imsgral o of e financial saissenis
Seee repont of independent scoountants dased March 24, 2017
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'.ITEEEIEI'_'ECI'RJE ﬁ: MACHINEEY OO, ITD.

{Expre .udl.n'ﬂm‘u.:nds- -:\\f.Nrn.' Ta.l.mdnllam lm:\npta.i mhnrm..o indirwed)

Rstained Farnings (Other qquity imtarest
Fmamcial
stamsns, Unrsalized gain or
translaticn Jow on available-
Share capifal - Total capital Unappoopriasd difsrences of for-sale fnancal
Noms common sock smplms Lam! resers Special Teserve  _ wimined eamings  _ Sorweisn operations Awbals Tmamry stods Total eguity
013
Balaxce at January 1, 2015 § 20,026,920 § 0.600,552 § 5008, 650 § 3.TETRG § 9. M0.058 1 351,951 1 366,632 (F 32083 ) 5402007
Appropaiaticns of 2014 net income (MHots) 515
Fermmal of specal mvers - - - 97,007 ) oo - - - -
Laml raservs - - A0, 652 - A0, 3 ) - - - -
Cash dnidends - - - - 0 203,962 ) - - - 3,202,962 )
v B e o s gy g o et i 10,005 - . . - - . 10,005
Differencas betwesn the price for scquisition or disposal of mbddiades  6()
and carryizg amount - 27860 - - - - - - 27 .86
Crther pompreherince Joss for the pear L] - - - - i 56,37 | 339,902 » 102,005 - 1 204,264 )
_— - . -,
mu?ummﬁm&]ﬁ &wmng'dmmusmm s - - - - TG - 2,524,687 ) -0 2,523,961
Net moome for the ywear - - - - 3,077,891 - - - 31700
Balazce at Ducamber 31, 201 3 20,026,020 3 0.658.417 5 54302 5 3.M0.TH 310,310,158 5 13.030 ] 143,050 0F 3563 ) 547042
ear 2015
Balanca ot Jammary 1, 2016 § 20,006,020 § 7658417 b3 § 3.0.TW § 10,310,158 1 13,080 5 143,950 @F ISR ) 547404042
Hew Itemn 5(1%)
Neow [em - - nr.ne - i NI TP ) - - - -
How Iiemn - - - - i 1602, 154 ) - - -0 1,602,154
HNaw Itsm - 33,472 - - - - - - 3342
Neow [em 5{20) - - - - i H T A 1,064,783 » 1,651,872 - 566,318
How Iiemn B{0) - - - - i M, 95 - .86 ) - 1 211,591)
Proft (loss) - - - - .40, 450 - - - 3,481 480
Balance at Decamvbar 31, 2016 § 20,026,029 § 0.671, 889 § 5,730,071 § 3.640.7% § 11816089 (§ 1,061,733y % 2,08, 5% 0% 21563 ) § 49,930,567

Mote: For the yeam ended Decambar 31, 2014 and 2013, dimcton’ and supemision” momessrtion amoenting to 5126,209 and £133,3 35, mapecteeraly, and amployees’ boams amemting to £329.421 and 8304, 550, mspacthvely, had beon dedwected
from the statements of comprehansne moome.

The acconpamying notes o an imegral past of thews financial staieowends.
Sea eport of independent accountmnts dated Manch 24, 2017,
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JEOOD ELECTRIC & MACHINERY Db LTD
PAREMT DORSPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOMFVS
FLIR. THE YEARE EMDED DECEMEBEER 31
{Ex presiend in Uhonsands of Mew Taiwan dallar, sxoepl as otherwise indicaad)

19

Fosles hila ] k]
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATNIMG ACTIVITIES
Frafil hefire L 4 3.622.424 3,506 444
Adjusisenls
Auljusmenis lo povansile profit (s}
Hel giin on asnciul aects o Bur value Ueough pealil o ks HIH13) { MEFT | 33.672 )
Hel s {gain) on Mmiacal kebdbecs o fur valas thrcugh jealil o o FE]

T { 1.316 ) 1,962
Privvasaea Nf desalitlul seeounts [ 1.005 1,663
Provassca T (reverad of ) da:hine in vaue of invenlones BB 107 605 35,755
lmlerest imeome I} { 20660 ) o 18640
lmleres) expense 24} 123.462 115,647
[hvidoml] inacene BIT) g 197377 ) | 84,084 )
et jraifemi en | Divies &IN13) 36,190 30§, 328
Lusscs ot dizigerian] ol mweslrscnty &3} i 23,971 ) 31,876
Cherggess im unrealised (gain) o from downaresm e 33 8.393 )
Prof of kel ekl om otha Som pichcnm ve imsime ol

msneinled and joml veniurs sceounied for under ety methad (hal

m reangnised prav by oblnmng amiral - a1, #47
Shave of prof of asaediaes and joml venless adiciunled For uader the  &E)

aquily methnd { 2,084.566 ) o 2,186,385 )
Depraciafion, amsoieion snd o gain o bis on dispossl ol projesty,  SIN10KIINIL)

Flani and cguipmenl, net 416,926 416,374
Feseggn casroncy exchange (gain) ks on bonds pavable 1.620 | 19,104 )

(leargest in eparaling ssscs and kabdiics
Cherggess i operaiing ssels

Firasarisl sssets ol [ valoe trough prof or loes - coeen - 54,678

Hilss Fedsi valdes i 6.0 | 55,818 )

Miskes peceivahie - relalm] petie i 59,337 ) 133,244

A s reeenalle i{ 366,165 | 185,835

A osuni recenable - relatad partics B2.135 374897

Fisvreralsless o cusloeness on somlnusson Sonrael { IRE .65 ) 38,127

Rha reemvakle i 10,455 1 44

Other recenables - relaiad pamses i 45.8B2F ) o 11,107 ]

Inventomes { 159,566 ) 36,285

Frepaymenta i 3000 0 5402 1

[Mhar currenl sssel 65,081 61,116
Chmnsggesi m operaiang liabslile

Fircaraisl lishilities ai o valos through prof o e -curnml i G -

Hules puryable { 5126 ) 5,803 )

Hules purpable - relited partses { 14. 941 ) 1.4

Acnunts Ta6 BRI TEl.71 )

Apvmsunes puyehls - el panes e - 321,935 )

Fayahls o cuslimess ia comsilrsn coplead { 160,535 ) 84,024

[Mhar payahlss 132180 29,412 )

[Mhar payiahles - reliled partie: { 2249 ) 13,57 )

Provaemena fir lishilitics 30513 o 1,357 )

[ber current lihilitis: L} 36,981 ) o 53,674 )

(har nen-curront liabilaess { 127330 ) o 11,167 1

Cash milow generaiad fhom operstion 1,749,374 1,938,515
Il eresl feaceivad BT} 20561 18,540
Dividonls reosival T21.221 w5897
Payrend of inl et { 156677 ) 89 4E9 )
Pyt ol imcoms: Ey { 16188 1 133.447 ]

Met gash lows fom operatmn g activilies 1,.337.391 2,710,116




JTECO ELECTRIC & MAUHINERY OCF. LTI
PARENT DDPFANY (OMLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARY ENDED DECEMBER 31
{Expreed ia theusands of Mew Tawan dallars, cxocpl ai cthermise inlicaad)

Prilesu ) ] ]
JOASH FLOWS FROGY TN EST IR ACTIVITIES
Iacrede 1 olber pecavables - iclalal jErlis i 0. (% 83220
Dhease o pledged fiaed deal B { 4.81% ) L
Frexoeubs frinm dispenl of i sl de-or -sale il giscls - men-curienl 111,241 95,507
[nircdres 1a avmilabl e-lin-sale linancial sty - aon<uimenl g #5557 1 o 37,560 )
[airede 14 invisdments acooualed o unds gty mathal { IWATL) | 4 063,078 )
Prossaedi Frinim dispesiaal of propaity, planl and ajugmen 1.5 4,99
Aumquinilim of property, plant and sqmpmenl 63 1D KEF) i TS50 ) o 09,740 )
[nirzme in Selenal onposes { 11040 3 o 1,340
Mireass) demmses moefndahle dgaeals L 34,397 )
Inerein: in ofhes min-camenl siscls { 19,45 ) 69,486 )
Mt cashy Dows weed in invesling sotivalics i GIR.GHEN ) 4 44 08T )
Frodsaeds friom sheel erm loams { A5 ) 3,215,954
(Decreasr) imrone o other uvables -relited partics fnancing 180000 o 643 48] )
Fressands frinm susnce al bend payahls - 3,000,000
Ml { 1500130 ) -
(Diecreasr) o o long-lerm | 16306 o 31,5981 )
Csth dividenls pasd &(19) { 1602 1% ) o 1,202,562 )
et canilh Qows {usad @) Bom fingncing sy { 2,068 397 ] 49,616
Mol decrese in cash and cavh squivalonts i 350,636 ) o 1 534,365 |
Cirihy el pividhy exjuers mlentss ol hegiming of yess 1,111.21% 1,795,583
Coshy sl cashy eqqurvalents ol ead of vear ] T 562 3 1.111.218

The sccsmpanymg aolss are an slegral paet of e linsssial salemenls
Eee repon ol independenl socounianls dalad March 24, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEFENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of TECO Electric & Machinery Co,
Ltd. a {the “Group™) as at December 31, 2006 and 2015, and the related conselidated

statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, inchiding a summary of significant accountmg
policies.

In our opiion based on our audits and the reports of other independent accountants, the conschdated
financial statements present famly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and thewr financial performance and cash flows for the vears then ended,
in conformity with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers”
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisery Commussion.

Basis for opinion

We conducted owr andits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described m the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group m accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants m the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities i accordance with the Code. We believe that the aundit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ow opinion.

Key audit matters
Key andit matters are those matters that, i our professional jedgment, were of most sigmificance m our
andit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed m the
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context of owr auwdit of the consohdated financial statements as a whole and, in forming owr opinion
thereon, we do not provide a separate opiuuon on these nmtters.

Revenne recognition af export sales of motor division

Description

Please refer to Note 4(34) of the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policies on revenne
recognition and Note 14 for the segment financial information Teco Group disclosed the financial
mformation of motor division and home appliance division in the segment financial mformation Motor
division handles the mamifacturing and sales of varions machinery, equipment and motors. The sales
revemme of the motor division amounted to $30,413,219 000, representing 61% of the total sales revenme
for the year ended December 31, 2016. The clients of motor division are from China, America, South-
East Asia and Europe and the sales terms vary for different clients. Thus, we consider the revenue
recognition of motor division a key audit matter.

How ovr andit addressed the matter

We performed the followimng audit procedures on the above key andit matter:

1. Checking the mternal controls over sales revemne recognition of motor division to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control process.

2. Selected samples of export sales revemne tramsactions of motor division to examine whether the
export sales recognized actually existed.

Impairment assessment of goodwill generated from the acquisition of Motovario S.p.4.

Description

Motovario S.p.A is located m Italy, and is engaged in the mamfacturing and sales of gear redwvcers and
other power transfer equipment. Motovario S.p.A. is considered a muninmm cash-generating unit of Teco
group. As of December 31, 2016, the balance of goodwill was $5,012.878,000. Please refer to Wote 4(21)
of the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policy on the impairment assessment of
goodwill and Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of the accounting estimate regarding impairment of goodwill.
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Teco Group assesses the impamment of goodwill usme the recoverable amonnt generated fom the cash
flow forecast discounted of reasonable discount rate.

The aforesaid recoverable amount inchides several assumptions such as the discount rate used and the
preparation of financial projections to estimate the cash flows for the next five years. The discount rates
and financial projections relating to the fishure operations of Motovario S p A are subject to management
judzment which hawve a significant impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount, thus affecting
the resuliz of the impairment assessment Accordingly, we consider management’s mpairment
assessment of goodwill a key andit matter.

How our aundit addressed the matter

We performed the followmng andit procedures on the above key audit matter:
1. Inspecting whether the valuation model nsed by The Group s reasonable.

2. Inspectng whether the fiuture cash flows of valuation model 15 m accordance with Motovario
5.p.A&%s operation plan, and reviewing the resulis of operation plan prepared by management in the
past.

3. Ewaluating the reasonableness of major assumptions (mcliding the expected growth rate and
discount rate) veed m the model

4. Assessing the sensitivity analysis of management's fivure cash flows for the above siznificant
assumptions and confirming whether management has adegquately addressed the possible impact of
the estimated nncertainty of the impairment assessment.

Business combination - acquisition af Century Development Corperation

Description

Please refer to Note 4(36) for acconnting policies on business combination As stated m Note 6(32) of
the consolidated financial statements, the Group acquired 12.12% of the ordinary shares of Cenhuy
Development Corporation for cash of $462,233,000 in February 2016. Including the previously held
40.63% stake in the Group, the total holdings of the Group mcreased to 52.75% and accordingly, the
Group obtamned control over Cenfury Development Corporation. Century Development Corporation is
engaged m domestic and foreizn industrial areas and site investment and development mcluding of
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consulting, planning, development management and leasing business. In determining the fair valoe of
the real property and land right held from the business combmation. management has compussioned a
valnation expert to evalnate the fair valoe and prepare a far value allocation report, which is measured
and assessed on the acquisition The identifiable assets of the Group and the liabilities assumed, which
will be completed within one year after the business combination. In addition the transaction is a phased
merger of enterprises. The Group in accordance with the fair value of the acouisition date to measuge its
previously held by the acquirer's interest. As Century Development Corporation’s common stock is not
quoted m active market, the management department of the Department of external experts to evaluate
the assessment of the fair value of the way. The evaluation of the fair value of the common stock in the
absence of the active market quotation involves the mdgment resulis and the evaluation results have a
significant effect on the valuation of the business combination. Thus, we consider the valuation of said
acquisition a key audit matter.

How our andit addressed the matier

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key andit matters:

1. Checking aceuisition conitract and certificate of proceeds paid fo ascertain accuracy of counter
whether the party and cash amount details.
Checling the record process for the accuracy of accounting process of acquisition that dovided mio

I

several steps.

3. Assessing the accuracy of parameter and caleulation, and the approach that management used in
evaluating the far value of Century Development Corporation

4. Assessing the qualifications of the management commutiee in appomting the valuation experts, and
evaluating the appropriateness of the parameters and models nsed.

Other matter — audit of other independent accountanis

As described mn Notes 4(3) and 6(9) of the consolidated financial statements, we did not andit the
financial statements of certain subsidiaries and mvestments accounted for vnder the equity method. The
financial statements of these subsidiaries reflect total assets of $3.517.300,000 and $11,314.418.000,
constituting 4% and 13% of the consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 20135, respectively,
and total operating revenues of $2.065. 558 000 and $3,074.913.000, constituting 4% and 6% of
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consolidated total operating revemues for the years then ended respectively. These investments
accounted for under the equity method amounted to $2,.445.113,000 and $4.040,747 000, constituting
5% and 13% of consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, the credit
balance of investments accounted for under equity method amounted for $55 400,000 and $28 270,000,
both constituting 0% of consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and
the share of profit of associates and jomt ventures accounted for under the equity method amounted to
$29.987.000 and $94 683,000, constituting 1% and 17% of the consolidated total comprehensive income
for the years then ended. respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other independent
accountants whose reports thereon have been furnished to vs, and owr opinton expressed herein is based
solely on the andit reports of the other independent accountants.

Other matter —Parent company only financial reports

We have audited the parent company only financial statements of TECO Electric & Machmery Co., Lid.
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 20135, and have expressed a modified uneualified
opinion on such financial statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Board of Directors for the consolidated
Sfinancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities lssuers”™ and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, [FRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission and for such infernal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the gomg concern basis of acconnting unless management either intends to Liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors, inchuding audst committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
O objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether doue to fraud or crror, and to msue an auditor’s

report that inchudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gnarantee
that an audit conducted m accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and mamtain
professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the nisks of material nusstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those nisks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for owr opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resultmg from frand 1s ugher than for one resulting from
ervor, as frand may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omussions, misrepresentations. or the
override of mternal control

Obtain an understanding of mternal control relevant to the andit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material vocertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
[ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
mnadequate, to modify our opinion Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may canse the Group to cease

to confimme as a going concern
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3. Evalnpate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statememnts.
mechnding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtam sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
busmess activities within the Group to express an opimon on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the growp audit. We remain
solely responsible for our andit opinion.

We commmnicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inclnding any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence, and where applicable, related safegnards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance m the andit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therelore the kev audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rage circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be commmnicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such conmunication.

PricewatethouseCoopers, Tanwan
March 24, 2017

The accompanying consolidated financial stafemments are not infended to present the fimaneal posibon and results of
operations and cash flows 1o acoordance wath accounting principles generally accepted I countnies and pnsdichions other
than the Fepubhc of Chma. The standards, procedures and practices m the Republic of Chima poverming the audit of such
finaneial statements may differ from those generally accepted I countnes and jansdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordmgly, the accompamying conselidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not mbendead for
use by those who are not mformed about the acooumtng prmoples or sauditng standards generally accepted m the Eepublic
of China, and thesr applications in practice.

A the financial statements are the respensibility of the menagement, PricewaterhouselCoopers cannot accept any hability for
the use of or reliance on, the Englich translation ar for any emrors @ misumderstandings that mawy derive from the tanslation.
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TECO ELECTRIC & MACHINERY CO. LTD. AN SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED BAT AWCE SHEETS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Exmressed in thousands of Mew Taiwan dollars, except as otherwiss indscated)

December 31, X016 Drecember 31, 20135
Azzan Hotas AMOURT i AMUOTHT e
Corrent assets

110 Cash and cash equivalents 5(1) and 8 5 13,9859, 826 15 § 14, 51%, 042 18
1110 Finamcial assets at fair waloe G(2)

thwoush profic or loss - oument 233,508 - 265, 4 -
1125 HAnailable-for-sale financial assets  G(3) and B

- ourrent 1,354,009 z 1,462,871 2
1147 Bond investments witheat active  G(4)

markets - Cument 1,830,572 3 141,351 -
1150 Hotes receivable. net G(F)() and & 1,218,343 1 1,006,151 1
1160 Motes receivable - related pardes 7 5,399 - 14, 543 -
1170 Accounis receivable. net () and 8 1,424,905 11 9,325,829 11
1184 Acooumes receivable - related 7

pardes 234,755 - 194,082 -
115 Beceivables fom customers on 6(8)

COnsmucton contads 1,235,950 1 05,458 |
1200 Cither recenvables 742,504 - 323,881 -
1210 Oither receivablas - related parties 7 457, 7% 1 G9T, Wi} 1
130X Inventories, net 6(7) and 8 11,177,041 12 11,755,227 14
1210 Drepayvments 471,200 1 353,08 1
1470 Cither onrent assets (1} and 8 1,350, 606 z 1,047,045 1
1XX Total current assets 45,2%,310 40 47,383,402 50

Total Non-corrent assets

1523 Anailable-for-sale financial aszetz  6(3) and B

- DON-CUITEnT 11,743,617 13 10,905, 909 13
1530 Investments acoounted for umder  6(9) and B

the equiry method 3,871,259 4 3,464,707 f
1500 Property, plant and equipment,  6(10), 7 and &

mef 18,463,450 20 15,018,217 18
1760 Iovestment property, et G{11} 3,073,385 3 2,561,444 %
1780 Intanghble assets LT T 5,634,766 & 3.54], 844
1B40 Dieferred incoms tam assets &30 1,01%4, 242 1 1,183,247 1
1900 Cither pon-OuTent assets G(13) md 8 5,054, BB 4 1,466,352 2
1530 Non~rurrent assefs 47 077,546 51 47 141 ,.85]) 50
I3 Total assets § %2,373,956 10§ 54,434,152 100}

(Conmmuead)
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TECO FLECTRIC & MACHINFRY C0. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATFED BATAMCE SHEFTE

YEARS FMDFD DECEMBER 31
{Exprassed in thomsands of Mew Tarwan dollars, except as otherwise indcated)

Decambar 31, 3016 Diecember 31, 2015
Liahitities and Fgeity Motes AMOUNT Y AMOTINT "
Current iabilites
2100 Short-term borrowings §(14) and & 3 3,078,361 4 % 6,615,012 #
2130 Financisl liabilifies at far value  6{175)
throegh profSt or bows - caomant - - L5.043 -
2150 Motes payahbla 163,160 - 1L, (a8 -
2160 Motes payahls - related partiss 7 1,611 - L.313 -
21T Arcounts payahle T.511,353 ) 6,625,882 #
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 9 117 - 05764 -
2150 Fayables to cavtomen om LT ]
ComstmLCtiom comfracty 02,021 - J6T 447 -
2200 Otbsar payables (16 4 SR8 650 f 4,863,815 b
2230 Currunt inpome tx liabilides §(30) 550441 1 555.4M l
350 Brondsioms for lishilities - current MM - 256,970 -
2300 Otbsar corant Habilities G{1T)(1E) 2075, 836 2 3,100, 186 4
21X Tatal current lEabilites L3, 058 845 21 22, T15.038 27
MNom-current liabilices
2530 Ciorporate bomds payable 5(17) 3,000,000 3 3000, 000 3
254} Long-term bormowings 6{15) and & 0.428,570 19 2,500, 9 3
2550 Provisions for liahilities - mom-
carrant 250,317 - 230,265 -
2570 Diefarmed incoms tax liabilities 5309 1485 443 3 2,317.721 3
2600 Ctbar noo-carmunt liabilites G150 2,526,238 3 2,438 425 3
K Total nom-current Babdlisie: 17,600 568 19 10, 286,710 12
TOY Tatal Habilicies 36,640 413 4 33,001,748 39
Eguiry ariributable to owners of
parent
Share capitsl 6209
31m Commmeom stock 10,026,524 12 20,026,929 24
Capiral surples 6(21)
3200 Capital surplas T.671, 880 ] 7,638,417 #
Ertamed sarning: 522330y
531 Lagal resarve 5. 750,071 f 5,413,542 7
330 Special reserve 3.640,7T9 4 3,640,779 4
3350 Unapproprizted retaimed sarmings LU, BLG G2 13 10,300,158 12
Ohiber equity imenest 6(23)
00 Crbar equify Inmamst L. 166,773 1 156,980 1
3500 Treanmy siocks {207 and B { 32l 5630 - EFIIRCEY -
I Equity anribuiable to owners
of the parent 49,731,567 M 47, 464,042 56
INH  Nem-conirolling interest 5502 076 & ER 3
OO Total equiry 55,124,543 ] 51,450, 504 fi
Commirmenr: and confimgent 9
Smbzequent evemis 11
BIX Toeal Babdlime: and equiry £ 82.373.8% 1] § 54,434 252 100

The accompenying notes ame an integral part of these comsolidatd fmancial statements.
e ruport of independent accountants dated March 24, 2017,
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TECOELECTRIC & MACHINERY (0. LTD. AND SUBSITHARIES

O SOLIDAT EDY STAT EMENTS OF DMOOME
FUR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[Expa m U &l Hew T el il dek olbarwiie slicated)
Visar endad Decenber 31
DG 2015
lizms Mated AMCHITT T AMOLINT T
A0 Rk revese: 24 and T 5 45,973,836 % 46.5%8.513 100
SO Dperaling il BTN 9N KTV anl
T | 3, TE8,. M) | T 36.203,039) | T4}
SO el jeralisg iarpis 13,135,532 15 12,395,534 26
3910 Unrsalised ok from sales I 6. 615) - 1 5. 4E8) -
3900 Rz read il Triem sales 5. 438 - 10, 265 -
S0UT e aperaling fiargin 13,134,305 15 12.400,311 26
D stin: e s & 192 ENT)
&1 TelThny ey | 4,495,731 o LI 4. 155, B57) | )
E200 Gieneral sl adminisiase sayens I 3,055, 5799) { 61 i 3.021,803) | 3]
E300 R b and desvelog i | 1,380, 6M ¢ 331 1,435, 2M4) | b
GO Tl speraling cxjscnses | 2,044, 9140 o 1B} i B.611,6384) | 1E)
G000 Opersting o 4,158,481 8 3. 787,627 i
i peralisg ineome ani cijEnees
Ol Lo ST G425 ) nd 7 1,160, 06 2 1,361, 206 3
TOh (Ehey gime mnd lossss BINIH1I NI INZEN3
I} | 43, 055 - S11.B07) o )]
TN Finasee Goals &10N2T) | H.131) - T80 0 )]
T Share of palil of asocaies and joind &9}
weniluied acvcounisd ke mda the
aquity metdind | o, W0 - 153,934 -
TOH Total nis-sperating income and
LRSS 743,810 1 75,644 1
TR Profio before inceme La 4,933, 9] 10 4,563, 171 %
TR I Ls expense &3] | B, 1930 | 1) 1 1045, 155) | b
4200 Profit for the periisd ¥ 4,03, 98 [ ] 3514, 116 7
(Contmued)
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TECO ELECTRIC & BMACHINERY 001 LTD. AND SLUBSITHARIES

FUR THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31

O SCHUIDATED STATEMENTS OF INOOBE

[ Expressed m thousands ol Mew Tamwaa dellars, excepl i ollssrwiee snlicated))

lizms

Yeur eadad Desssnber 31

DG

2015

Bated AMICHINT

e

AMOLINT

a3mn

130y

a4

b k][]

236l

2362

23T

a3

1360

2300

A50n

D L]

7
T

ki
SR

Other com prolessive inoims
Other com prolessive inosme thal
will nod b reclassiliad (o pral or
Fann

(Mhey comprehemive incame, belive &19)

e, sefuarial lokes on Sfinsd
Bensia pliss

Share of alher comprchenmive
monme of aveocsbes and joist
el sovouniad e wang equily
methen], Sompomms ol ofhes
cmpecheno ve mones et wall sl
b feclasmled W pradil o loss

{ 11,532)

lemxzeme Live relaled b compononts o &730)

wlher compecheny e inamme et
walll Al b Fecdaniaficd b profil of
Toan
Compiasnts of mbier
ol ns e s thal will
nisl be reclssilied 1o profilor
lisiai
hier o el e incis thal
will he reclassilied to prafil or kas
0 i diflx ol
Ercign opaiaiang
Unrealied gan {lokk) on valeilion
ol arv andbihle-fisr -aile l dkicty
Share of alher comprchenmive
monme of aveocsbes and joist
el wedauniad ke wmdar 1he

aquily methid - cther comprehensive

minise el will b sockiealiod ta
ol of ke
lesazane Live felaling o the

compoensnls of alha compecheniive

minse el will b socliealiod
Composats of other
ol ns e s thal will
he Peetissifed w prafit o liss
her eomprolessie incse {lis)
Far the period
Toatsd et prehensive intome Tr s
peerindd
Prafit amtrilietable wn:
Uhernezra ol e parent
Moen-cvatielhng imleres

Cosgsre hessive incomie arributsilbe
LITH
Urwmeta ol e pasenl
Moen-cvatielhng imleres

Edrniggs per share {in Sallars)
Basic carnings per ke
Dilwicd carsisgs per ihare

The accai sty i fls a2 an ialegeal il of these sonsslidilsd Gnisasl dacsai

61, Bl

5,113

{ 1. 041

65, 1421

&13}

BIN13)

&13}

&30

] 2]

B

2540, 1510 1

&, BH)

38,52

2,883 BLE)

50

2.953,958) |

&0

360, 158

317,351
136 B15

3514, 116

359,066
201 .05

560, 158

&3}

See repoit ol independent acovmnlanly daled Masch 24, 2017
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IECOFIECTRIC & MACIHINFRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSTDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOB. THE YEARS FENDFD DECEMBER 31
{Exprecsed In thonsands of Mew Tawan dollam, axocept e otherodse indicated)

Miotas 2018 M5
CASH FLOWS FROM OPFRATING ACTIVITIES
Profit bafors tax £ 4,933,291 § 4,563,271
Adpestmants
Adnstments o momols profit (bous)
Mot bows (gain) on fnancal assats at fir valoe through profit 8 23(25)
or Jous { 12,017 3 o 56,5300
Nt loas on Exencial Habdlitios af fair valee throngh prefitor  §{13025)
loss { 1,214 ) 14,630
{Fewursal of) provisicn for allowancs for doubtfnl accousts &) { 11,78 ) 30, 08
Provisiom fir decline in value of inventories 5T 52,253 156, 665
Interest incoms B{2T) { L72,217 % o 178,084 b
Dividend incoms H2IN { 560,089 o 476,663 )
Infarest axpense 6{2T) 2,231 227,651
Cepreciation and amortization S{10{11H28) |, 540, 723 1.307,530
iZain om disposal of investmeats B{2h(285) | GI9, 104 5 177,504 b
Laoss on disposal of property, plant and equipmest 826 { G647 » 14, 233
Impairmeat loss L) LE?, 277 413,155
Share of profit of associates and joint venreres accoumted for B{T)
endar the sguity method 9,260 153,536 )
Forsign carmancy sxchangs boss (gain) of bonds payable 1620 o 20,100 )
Eha:ugu: in operating et and Eabdlites
Chamge: in oparating assats
Financin] assets at fair valee fhmoegh proft or boss - coment & 4 108, 5ds
Motus recaivabls | 212,164 » 67,433
Noiws recsivahls - relaied pariies 9,544 4, 180
Arcounts recaivable | Lo, 196 b 504,850
Accounts recaivable - related partiss | 18,936 ) B0 B8
Baecenahbles from cavtorsars on construction contract { 414 111 IR, 54T
Crthar receivables L78 066 o 63,257 3
Orthar recedvables - ralated parties 23,411 9,241
Imventoriss 525,033 G821, 140
Prepayments | LID G821 b o B1,185 )
Crther corent assets | LZ7 198 » 81,192
Champe: in operting Habilities
Totes payeble 4 .506 T8 )
Motes paypals - related parties { 444 1 | 7,537 )
Arcounts payabile g ,574 | 1.B57,814 »
Accounts payeble - related parties 3,351 2,178
Payahles bo cushomars oo construction contracts [ LET 304 » 6, | X
Crthar payables T2, B45 164,156
Pronisioms for liabilitios 35,300 67, T4
Crthar comrent Babdlities | 372,607 0 {0,065 )
Orthar nos-cormnt Babilitios | 141 &TE b
Cash inflow generated Som oparations 4,925,765 5,784,748
Interest received 82N 172,217 178, 084
Dividend recaived 62 TG 4l6 a5] , 00
Intarest paid 6{2T) | E2, 250 0 17,681 b
Income tax paid {30 { 671,738 5 o 244, TLE b
HNat cash flowrs from opemating activifies 4 250 430 554 4%8

(Conmnued)
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IECOELECTRIC & MACEINERY CO, LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIMATED STATEMFNTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOE THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBFER 31
(Expressed in thomsands of Mew Taiwan dollam, except 2 otherndse indcated)

Mobes 2018 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM INUESTING ACTIVITIES
Encrezss in othar receivables-related partias 7 i 26,500 % -
{Imcreass) decreass in avadlable-for-sale fnancial asses - oumat 11,067 142,407 5
(Bacarsase) decreass i band imvestments without activs markst 2,689,021 ) | 19,001
Inoeas in pledged demand and fixed dapasits B I3,8L0 ) o 2E2, 506 b
Procesds from disposal of svailable-for-sale finamcial assets -

Dom-curTemt 025 473 G, 142
Acquisitiem of available-for-sale Ezancial assets - nom-cumest 150 632 ¥ o B, 440y
e in myvestments accounted for mder the eqety method 1,82y 500, TE4 b
Aciuisitiom of proparty, plant and equipment 6{1H(33) 1464972 3 1 L6896 681 )
Procesds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 63,713 28, 591
Acquisiticn of intangdble assets 225,000) 167,084
Decreass i resimictad aswts 510 o FIL]
{Increass) decreass in other non-coment asets 621,17 ) 57,50
Nt cash inflow [ourflow) am acquisitions of sebuidaries S(3T)33) 266,268 | 3,894,036 )

Wat cash fomrs msed in imesting activities 3,779,570 0 5,867,046 3
CASH FLOWS FROM FIMANCTNG ACTIVITIES
Ioeese (Deceass) in shori-term loans 3.540,650 » 3.6, 661
Inoeess (Seceass) in long-term loans 5588, 166 5. 795,025 )
Repaymant of bunds paysble 1,500,200 ) .
Procesds from is of bands payahl 817 . 2,000,000
Cash dividends paid 6023 1602154 5 1 2202962 )
Wat cash fiomrs msed in financing activities 1054, B30y | L. 269,526 )
Exchangs rumw affoct D5 256 0 o ARG, 8 b
Wat decrsase in cash and cash equivalemts L e L J2BD 648 )
Cath and cash squvalaes at baginming of yuar 14,919,042 17,201, 6900
Cach and cash squivalenss at and of year i |3.985 .84 % L4900, 042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fizancial statemants.

S ruport of independent accountants dated March 24, 20017
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TECOELECTRIC & MACHMERY O0_ ITD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CIIAWGES DI EQUITY

-

{Exprenssd in thonsamds of Mew Taiwam dollan, exoapt as otherariue mdiceed)

E g n it 7 a ¢t . r i b m t a b 1 @ t o 0 W n & T & o f t h & P & T & m #
Estaned Exming Criiar eoquity Cbarest
Fizandal
Hr. e v TUnmalired gain
translation arlosson
Urppropristed  diferancss of availahin-for-
Shere capatal - Capital Specal mtaingd fomuign wale fmancial Tmuasury Non-conirolling
Mot common shock sl Lagal msarma RSEIS saming OpsrAtions Aunes sbocks Total tmbarast Total aguty

Xear snded Docombor 31, 2015

Balazcs af Famuary 1, 2015 §20.006,509 57,600,552 $5.005.6%0  $ATITIEE S 91155 0§ 322 0§ 3,186,630 ($321.563 ) S49.IT0TE 5 4008048 § 53,288,722
Appropritations of 2014 not incoms 517)

Rewmmal of special mesns: - - - [ G007y 7,007 - - - - - -
Loml msarm - - 404,692 - 4,692
Cash dvidands - - - -0 B2 - - ER A R R i
et e B e ™

- 100005 - - - - - - 10,005 - 10,005
Differunca betwesn the price for acquisiton or

disposal of subsidisnie: and carymg amoumt - 278 - - - - - - IT &0 - IT 500
Changes in nom-controlling imemsts - - - - - - - - -0 .My | 151,19

Crther comprabamive incoma for the year 623) - - - - i 35,6410 (339902 (  I.4L1.682) - LEIBIE) 133,733y {  1.953.9%
Profit for the year 627) - - - - 3.1M.29 - - - 3.077.20 336,825 1,504,116

Balazcs 2 Ducamber 31, 2003 § 20006509 $7.638.417 $5.412.34 $3.640.7T0 510310158 0 0§ 13030 0§ T4I0S0 (2L 563 0 S4T4ed. M2 5 306460 § 51 432,504
Forthe six-month peciod sxded fune 30 2015

Balancs af Jamuary 1, 2016 $20,006,509 57638417 $5.412.34  $3.&0TTO £10,310,158  § 13030 0§ MIOS0  ($3.563 ) S4TAM0M2 % 3.06d.4@ $ 51,432,504
Appropritation of 2017 net income 6(22)

Lol msrm - - 317,730 - 317,729 ) - - - - - -
Cuh Eridend - - - -0 1,802,154 - - - 18I - 1.600%
Effect of changes in nat squity of associxtes and
joimt venTeE mmﬁmhm

- EER Ve - - - - - - 33 4T - 33472
Changes i non-controlling et - - - - - - - - -
Crthar comprehomsive income for the period 623) - - - - 1 35,066 )  1.064.783 1.474,5% - ™ TIT O
Proft for the paricd 621) - - - - 3,481,480 - - - 3451 480
Balancs ar Foma 30, 2016 § 20006, 509 £ 7,671,880 $ 5. 730,07 § 3640 7T £11.816.680 (31060753 % 20853 ($321.563 ) §49.730. %47 ]

325,891
4036 998
§ 55, 7M M43

Th accompanying notes me an integmal part of these consolidaied finandal sbemonts.
Ses report of independent acooentanis daied Manch 24, 2017.
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TECQELECTRIC & MACHINERY C0. LTD AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMTS OF CASH FLOWS
EOR THE YEARS EMDED DECEMEER. 31
{Expressed in thousands of Mew Taiwan dollars)

Iotes Mi§ 013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATTNG ACTIVITIES
Pmﬁxheﬁarem 5 4,933,291 § 4,553,171
to reconcile profit (Joss)
Etgnmmﬁmmlassmufmﬂbjethmugh;mﬁmrlnss G{20(26) i 12,017 % 56,530 )
Net (zaim) loss on financial liahilities at fair vahes throusgh 61 F)(24)
profit or loss { 1,214 % 14,620
(Feverzal of) provizion for allowance for doubtfil accomntz 6(8) i 11,722 ) 39,004
Provisien for decline in vahie of inventenes &7} 52,253 136 665
Interest income 625} { 172,217 ) 178,084 )
Dividend ncoms 6(23) i 560,089 » 476,663 )
Inrerest expense 6(27) 282,231 127,691
Diepreciaton and amonization G0N 1)) 1,548, 723 1,307, 53%
(rain on disposal of investments {240 24) i G619, 104 ¥ | 177,504 )
I.m:nnd:spmalufpmpa'rf plant and equipment G165 i 6ET b 10,233
Tnpairment los {3)(26) 127,107 412,195
Share of profit nfassucute:md]umtmﬂuﬁ accommied for 69
under the equity method BO.260 o 153,536 )
anmmm&ﬂmnhs:%ﬂ:m)nfbmdspaﬁble 1620 ¢ 29,100 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operatins assefs
Financial assets af fir value throush profit or loss - coment 44 45% 108 545
Motes recaivable i 212,164 ) 657,433
Hotes racaivabls - related partes 0,544 B4, 185
Arcounts receivable i 1,060,196 ¥ 504 850
Arconnts receivable - related partiss i 18,936 ) 385 858
Feceivables from costomers on constroction contrads { 414,111 ¥ 38,847
(Other receivables 178,086 63,257 )
(Other recemvables - related partes 23,411 ¥,242
Iventoriss 515,933 WE2,140
Prepayments { 111,621 » ¢ 82,285 )
(Orher oxment assats i 127,198 ) 81,192
Chanees in operating lisbilities
Iotes payable 49, 516 7,824 )
Motes payable - related parties i 444y 7.537 )
Arconnts payable 810,574 | 1,837,814 )
Arcounts pavable - related parties 3,351 1,178
Payables to CustOmErs o0 CODSTOCTHON CONTACTE i 187,508 » 16,126
Other payahles T2, 845 164,156
Provizions for liabilities 35,307 67,746
(Other oxrent Habilitias i FT2E0T Y & 170,965 )
(Orher non-current liahilities 7,705 141,878 )
Cash inflow generated fm epemiions 4,525, Ta5 5,784,748
Imterest received (25} 172,217 178,084
Dinvidend recesved 615} 06,416 651,005
Imperest paid 6(27) { 282,231 ) 227,691 )
Incomse tax paid 6300 { BT, TIE Y 844 718 )
Wet cazh flows from operating actvities 4,830,429 5,541,428

{Continued)
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TECO ELECTRIC & MACHINERY CO., LTD. AND STUBSIDIARIES
COMEQLIDATED STATFMPNTE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS FMDED DECEMBER 31
(Expressed in thomsands of New Taiwan. dollars)

Moms 2018 20135

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
IncTess in other recaivahlas-ralated partias T $ 106, 500 -
(Imcrsass) decreass in available-for-als francial assets - cument 11,067 42,407
[Incarsase) decrsass in bond imestments withont acthee market 2,689,021 1 19,011
Incrusss in pledged damand and fixed deposits 8 13,811 ) 242,508

Procesds from disposal of svailable-for-sale fzancil asset -

nom-curmesd 015,473 G54, 142
Aceuisition of available-Sor-sals fnancial assets - nos-currest 150,622 ) &), 440
IncTeass in investments accownted for under the equity method 91,820 ) 310,74
Arquisition of proparty, plant and squipment S{1033) |, 404 972 ) 1,6, GR1
Procesds fom disposal of property, plaxt and equipmess 63,713 18,50]
Acquisition of intangible assets 225,070 ) 167,184
Diecreass in resticted assets 511 218
(Increass) decreass in other non-cerrent assets 627,717 ) 57,590
Mot cash inflowr (outfiow) on acquisitions of subsidiariss S(3233) i, 268 3,804 0354
Mut cash fows wsed in Brvesting activities 3,709.5M ) 5,867,944

CASEHFLOWS FROM FRIANCTNG ACTIVITIES
Increans {decrezass) in short-term boans 3,540,651 ) 3, TH, 6]
Increas (decmezss) in long-term boams 5,588, 166 5,793,025
Fepaymant of bonds payable L, 500,200 ) -
Procesds from isveance of bands payable (1T - 3,008, 00
Cash dividends paid 5(22) |, 602,154 ) 2, M2 g2
Mat cach dows wisd in Snancing activitios |, (54,830 ) 1,169,526
Exchangn rate affect 045,23 ) 36, B4
Mut decrease In cach and cash eqgeivalents 19,216 ) 2, 182,648
Canh and cash squivalents at begiaming of year 14,019,042 17,201,690
Caah 2nd cash sqenvaleats at and of year § 13,58 B2 14,519,042

Ths accompamying notes 2me am integral part of these consclidaied fnencial staments.
S report of independent accountants dated March 24, 2017,
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Distribution of 2016 Profits
(In NT $)

Appendix 4

Item

Amount

Accumulated undistributed profit as of the beginning of the period
Less: Retained earnings after adjustment in 2016

Accumulated undistributed earnings after adjustment

Add: Net Profit after tax in 2016

Less : Legal Reserve

8,390,274,224

(55,064,738)

8,335,209,486

3,481,479,502
(348,147,950)

Total distributable earnings

11,468,541,038

Profit available for distribution for the period:
Profit-sharing to shareholders

(Dividend per share)

1,762,369,740

0.88

Undistributed profit as of the end of 2016

9,706,171,298

Note :

1. Defined Pension Obligation actuarial gains and losses, and
recognized as Other comprehensive income including it into
retained earnings

Notes:

1. Dividend per share in 2016 is NT$0.88 and all dividends distributed this year shall be

cash dividend.

2. The profit distributed this period will be distributed from the distributable earnings
received in 2016 and from the accumulated undistributed profits from previous years

where there is a shortfall.

3. In the event of any change to the total number of outstanding shares as a result of the
issuance of convertible bond, Company’s buyback of its own shares, transfer, conversion
or deregistration of treasury shares, exercise of employees’ stock option and other
factors, it is proposed that the Shareholders’ Meeting grants the Chairman full authority to
handle all relevant matters subject to the fixed payout rate mentioned above.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Appendix 5

Comparison of Current Provision and Proposed Amendment to

Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets

Proposed Provision

Current Amendment

Note

Article 7

Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of real property or
other fixed assets

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

Acquisition or disposal of real
property and equipments by the
Company shall be in accordance
with the Company’s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Procedure for determining the
terms of transaction and approval
of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the acquisition or
disposal of real property shall be
determined by reference to,
among others, the posted current
value, appraised value, and the
actual transaction price of other
real property located nearby.
Transactions with a value of less
than TWD50 million may precede
with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD50 million
and TWD100 million each may
proceed with the approval of the
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and shall be reported to
the immediately subsequent
meeting of the Board of Directors.
Transactions with a value of over
TWD100 milion must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Acquisition or disposal of
equipments shall be conducted
by way of issuing request for
proposal, price competition under

Article 7

Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of real property or
other fixed assets

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

Acquisition or disposal of real
property and equipments by the
Company shall be in accordance
with the Company’s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Procedure for determining the
terms of transaction and approval
of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the acquisition or
disposal of real property shall be
determined by reference to,
among others, the posted current
value, appraised value, and the
actual transaction price of other
real property located nearby.
Transactions with a value of less
than TWD50 million may precede
with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD50 million
and TWD100 million each may
proceed with the approval of the
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and shall be reported to
the immediately subsequent

meeting of the Board of Directors.

Transactions with a value of over
TWD100 million must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Acquisition or disposal of
equipments shall be conducted
by way of issuing request for
proposal, price competition under

38



restricted tendering, and price
negotiation under single
tendering or bidding. The

approval thereof shall be in
accordance with the Schedule of
Functions and Authority compiled
pursuant to the relevant bylaws of
the Company.

2.3 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with  written record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee.
On the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion  expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent
expressed and the reason
therefore duly recorded in the
meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments pursuant
to the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.
4. Appraisal report on real
property or equipments

Where the transaction value of
the acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments amounts
to 20% or more of the paid-in
capital of the Company or
TWD300 million or more, an
appraisal report produced by a
professional appraiser must be
obtained before the date the fact
happens in accordance with the
following, except in cases where
the transaction counterpart is a

restricted tendering, and price
negotiation under single
tendering or bidding. The
approval thereof shall be in
accordance with the Schedule of
Functions and Authority compiled
pursuant to the relevant bylaws of
the Company.

2.3 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with written record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On
the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent expressed
and the reason therefore duly
recorded in the meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments pursuant
to the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Appraisal report on real
property or equipments

Where the transaction value of
the acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments amounts
to 20% or more of the paid-in
capital of the Company or
TWD300 million or more, an
appraisal report produced by a
professional appraiser must be
obtained before the date the fact
happens in accordance with the
following, except in cases where
the transaction counterpart is a
government agencies, or the

Change
government
agencies to
government
institutions, in
line with the
revision of the
statute by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission
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government institutions, or the
transaction is an entrusted
construction  project on a

self-owned land or a leased land,
or the objects to be acquired or
disposed of is equipment for
business purpose.

4.1 Where the transaction price
shall be determined by reference
to any restricted, designated
price or special price for whatever
special reason, the transaction
and all subsequent changes to
the terms thereof (if any) must be
submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval in advance.

4.2 Where the transaction value
amounts to TWD21 billion or
more, the appraisal shall be
conducted by two or more
professional appraisers.

4.3 If the appraisal conducted by
the professional appraiser runs
into either of the following
conditions, except the appraisal
value of the acquired assets is
higher than the trading value or
the appraisal value of the
disposed assets is lower than
the trading value, subsequent
handling by certified public
accountant in accordance with
the No. 20 Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards
published by ARD Foundation
should be sought for as well as
its opinion with respect to the
reasons accounting for the price
difference and the acceptability
of the transaction price:

4.3.1 The amount difference
between the appraised value and
the transaction value amounts to
20% of the transaction value.

4.3.2 The amount difference
among the appraised values as
a result of the appraisals
conducted by two or more
professional appraiser’'s amounts
to 10% or more of the

transaction is an entrusted
construction project on a
self-owned land or a leased land,
or the objects to be acquired or
disposed of is equipment for
business purpose.

4.1 Where the transaction price
shall be determined by reference
to any restricted, designated price
or special price for whatever
special reason, the transaction
and all subsequent changes to
the terms thereof (if any) must be
submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval in advance.

4.2 Where the transaction value
amounts to TWD1 billion or more,
the appraisal shall be conducted
by two or more professional
appraisers.

4.3 If the appraisal conducted by
the professional appraiser runs
into either of the following
conditions, except the appraisal
value of the acquired assets is
higher than the trading value or
the appraisal value of the
disposed assets is lower than the
trading value, subsequent
handling by certified public
accountant in accordance with
the No. 20 Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards published
by ARD Foundation should be
sought for as well as its opinion
with respect to the reasons
accounting for the price
difference and the acceptability of
the transaction price:

4.3.1 The amount difference
between the appraised value and
the transaction value amounts to
20% of the transaction value.

4.3.2 The amount difference
among the appraised values as a
result of the appraisals conducted
by two or more professional
appraiser’'s amounts to 10% or
more of the transaction value.
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transaction value.

4.4 The appraisal report date and
the date of creation of the
transaction contract conducted by
professional appraiser must not
be apart for more than 3 months.
Notwithstanding, if the same
posted present value has been
adopted to calculate the value
and the above two dates are less
than 6 months apart, the written
opinion of the original
professional appraiser may be
sought.

4.5 Where the Company has
acquired or disposed of the asset
by auction by the court, the
relevant written evidence
document issued by the court
may operate in place of the
appraisal report or certified public
accountant’s opinion.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can not be
included.

4.4 The appraisal report date and
the date of creation of the
transaction contract conducted by
professional appraiser must not
be apart for more than 3 months.
Notwithstanding, if the same
posted present value has been
adopted to calculate the value
and the above two dates are less
than 6 months apart, the written
opinion of the original
professional appraiser may be
sought.

4.5 Where the Company has
acquired or disposed of the asset
by auction by the court, the
relevant written evidence
document issued by the court
may operate in place of the
appraisal report or certified public
accountant’s opinion.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can not be
included.

Article 11
Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of intangible assets

1. Evaluation and procedure for
operation

The acquisition or disposal of
intangible  assets by the
Company shall be conducted in
accordance with the Company’s
internal control policy pertaining
to the revolving of fixed assets.

2. Terms of transaction and
procedure for approval of
transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the proposed acquisition

Article 11
Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of intangible assets

1. Evaluation and procedure for
operation

The acquisition or disposal of
intangible assets by the Company
shall be conducted in accordance
with the Company’s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Terms of transaction and
procedure for approval of
transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the proposed acquisition
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or disposal of intangible assets
shall be determined by reference
to the evaluation report produced
by an expert or the fair market
value. Transactions with a
transaction value of less than
TWD30 milion each may
proceed with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD30 million
and TWD60 million may proceed
with the approval of the Chairman
and shall be reported to the
immediate subsequent meeting
of the Board of Directors.
Transactions with a value of over
TWD60 million each must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with  written record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee.
On the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent
expressed and the reason
therefore duly recorded in the
meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition or disposal  of
membership or intangible assets
or other fixed assets pursuant to
the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Expert evaluation report on
membership or intangible assets

or disposal of intangible assets
shall be determined by reference
to the evaluation report produced
by an expert or the fair market
value. Transactions with a
transaction value of less than
TWD30 million each may proceed
with the approval of the President.
Transactions with a value of
between TWD30 million and
TWD60 million may proceed with
the approval of the Chairman and
shall be reported to the immediate
subsequent meeting of the Board
of Directors. Transactions with a
value of over TWDG60 million each
must be approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board of
Directors in  advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with written record thereof
taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On
the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the Board
of Directors for approval, opinion
expressed by the Independent
Director shall be sufficiently
considered with their concurrence
or dissent expressed and the
reason therefore duly recorded in
the meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition  or  disposal  of
membership or intangible assets
or other fixed assets pursuant to
the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Expert evaluation report on
membership or intangible assets
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Except the transaction with
government institutions, where
the transaction value of the
acquisition  or disposal  of
membership or intangible asset
by the Company amounts to 20%
of the paid-in capital of the
Company or TWD300 million, the
opinion of a certified public
accountant on the acceptability of
the proposed transaction price
should be sought for before the
date the fact happens, who shall
act in accordance with the No. 20
Statement of Auditing Standards
published by the ARD
Foundation.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can be excluded.

Except the transaction with
government agencies, where the
transaction value of the

acquisition  or  disposal  of
membership or intangible asset by
the Company amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the Company
or TWD300 million, the opinion of
a certified public accountant on
the acceptability of the proposed
transaction price should be sought
for before the date the fact
happens, who shall act in
accordance with the No. 20
Statement of Auditing Standards
published by the ARD Foundation.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can be excluded.

Change
government
agencies to
government
institutions, in
line with the
revision of the
statute by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission

Article 14

Procedure for handling merger,
spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

1.1 The Company shall, for the
purpose of a merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, call a meeting of the legal
counsel, certified public
accountant and underwriter for
joint discussion to determine the
timetable of the legal proceeding
and organize a special group to
execute the legal proceeding.
The Company shall also seek the
opinion of the certified public
accountant, legal counsel or
underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price or,
cash or other property to be
distributed to the shareholders
and submit the same to the
meeting of the Board of Directors

Article 14

Procedure for handling merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

1.1 The Company shall, for the
purpose of a merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, call a meeting of the legal
counsel, certified public
accountant and underwriter for
joint discussion to determine the
timetable of the legal proceeding
and organize a special group to
execute the legal proceeding. The
Company shall also seek the
opinion of the certified public
accountant, legal counsel or
underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price or,
cash or other property to be
distributed to the shareholders
and submit the same to the
meeting of the Board of Directors

There is no need
to solicit opinions
of experts on
reasonableness
of the ratio of
share swap, as,
according to the
FSC's

suggestion,
acquisition of
100% owned

subsidiaries or
merger of 100%
owned subsidies,
on the basis of
Enterprises

Mergers and
Acquisitions Act,
is tantamount in
essence to
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for approval. The company need
not obtain reasonable opinions
from__experts, as mentioned
above, for acquiring subsidies
100% owned, in terms of issued
shares or paid-in _capital, by the
company directly or indirectly or
merger _of subsidiaries 100%
owned, in terms of issued shares
or paid-in capital, by the company
directly.

1.2 The Company shall, prior to
the convention of the relevant
Shareholders Meeting, produce
the document on disclosure of
the material agreement and
relevant matters on the proposed
merge, spin-off or acquisition and
submit such document to all
shareholders together with the
expert opinion  provided in
paragraph 1.1 of this Article and
the meeting minutes as reference
for the shareholders to determine
to or not to approve the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition,
except in case where a relevant
resolution adopted by the
Shareholders Meeting is not
legally required. If any of the
participant companies is unable
to convene the meeting, or to

obtain the resolution of its
shareholders meeting on the
proposed merger, spin-off or

acquisition because the number
of shares represented at the
meeting fell short of the quorum
for the meeting or the proposal is

denied by the meeting, the
participant  companies  shall
promptly give a public

explanation of the cause, the
subsequent handling and
reschedule a date for convening
the shareholders meeting.

2. Other matters for attention

2.1 Date of convention of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors:

Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved
by the FSC, companies

for approval.

1.2 The Company shall, prior to
the convention of the relevant
Shareholders Meeting, produce
the document on disclosure of the
material agreement and relevant
matters on the proposed merge,
spin-off or acquisition and submit
such document to all shareholders
together with the expert opinion
provided in paragraph 1.1 of this
Article and the meeting minutes
as reference for the shareholders
to determine to or not to approve
the proposed merger, spin-off or
acquisition, except in case where
a relevant resolution adopted by
the Shareholders Meeting is not
legally required. If any of the
participant companies is unable to
convene the meeting, or to obtain
the resolution of its shareholders
meeting on the proposed merger,
spin-off or acquisition because the
number of shares represented at
the meeting fell short of the
quorum for the meeting or the
proposal is denied by the meeting,
the participant companies shall
promptly give a public explanation
of the cause, the subsequent
handling and reschedule a date
for convening the shareholders
meeting.

2. Other matters for attention

2.1 Date of convention of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors:

Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved
by the FSC, companies
participating in the merger, spin-off
or acquisition shall convene the

corporate
restructuring of a
business group.
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participating in the merger,
spin-off or acquisition shall
convene the meeting of the board
of directors and the shareholders
meeting on the same day to
adopt the resolution on the
matters in connection with the
proposed merger, spin-off or
acquisition. Except as otherwise
provided by law or there being
any special factor which has
been approved by the Financial
Supervisory Commission,
companies participating in the
assignment of shares shall
convene the meeting of the board
of directors on the same day.
Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall maintain complete
written record on the following
materials and keep the same for
a term of five years.

2.1.1 Basic personal information:
including all personnel who
participate in the execution of the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares before the
relevant information was publicly
released, including their titles,
names, and identification card (or
passport) number.

2.1.2 Dates of important matters
including, among others,
execution of the relevant
memorandum of intent (MOI) or
memorandum of understanding
(MOU), engagement of financial
or legal counsel, execution of the
relevant contract(s) and the date
of the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors.

2.1.3 Important documents and

meeting records on, among
others, the proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or

assignment of shares, and the
relevant MOI or MOU, important
contract(s) and minutes of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors.

Companies patrticipating in the

meeting of the board of directors
and the shareholders meeting on
the same day to adopt the
resolution on the matters in
connection with the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition.
Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved
by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, companies
participating in the assignment of
shares shall convene the meeting
of the board of directors on the
same day.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall maintain complete
written record on the following
materials and keep the same for a
term of five years.

2.1.1 Basic personal information:
including all personnel who
participate in the execution of the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares before the
relevant information was publicly
released, including their titles,
names, and identification card (or
passport) number.

2.1.2 Dates of important matters
including, among others,
execution of the relevant
memorandum of intent (MOI) or
memorandum of understanding
(MOU), engagement of financial
or legal counsel, execution of the
relevant contract(s) and the date
of the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors.

2.1.3 Important documents and
meeting records on, among
others, the proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares, and the relevant MOI or
MOU, important contract(s) and
minutes of the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
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merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall each, within two
days from the date following the
adoption of the relevant
resolution by the meeting of their
Board of Directors, make a report
online of the information provided
in subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph in the
required form and substance to
the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter

market shall enter into the
relevant agreement with
companies participating in the

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are not traded on the
stock exchange or the
over-the-counter market (if any)
and make the report provided in
the two preceding paragraphs.

2.2 Prior
agreement:

non-disclosure

All persons who participate in or

have knowledge about the
Company’s project of merger,
spin-off, acquisition or

assignment of shares shall each
sign a non-disclosure agreement
to undertake that they will not
externally disclose the project
before the Company makes the
relevant public disclosure and
that they will not buy or sell any
stocks or equity securities of any
company involved in the
proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, either in their own name
or using any other person’s name
to do so.

2.3 Determination and change of
the proposed swap ratio or

exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall each, within two days
from the date following the
adoption of the relevant resolution
by the meeting of their Board of
Directors, make a report online of
the information provided in
subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph in the
required form and substance to
the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter

market shall enter into the
relevant agreement with
companies participating in the

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are not traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market (if any) and make the
report provided in the two
preceding paragraphs.

2.2 Prior
agreement:

non-disclosure

All persons who participate in or
have knowledge about the
Company’s project of merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares shall each sign a
non-disclosure  agreement to
undertake that they will not
externally disclose the project
before the Company makes the
relevant public disclosure and that
they will not buy or sell any stocks
or equity securities of any
company involved in the proposed
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, either in
their own name or using any other
person’s name to do so.

2.3 Determination and change of
the proposed swap ratio or
acquisition price:

Each participant company shall
seek the opinion of the certified
public accountant, legal counsel

46




acquisition price:

Each participant company shall
seek the opinion of the certified
public accountant, legal counsel
or underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price, or
cash or other property to be
distributed to shareholders before
the meetings of Board of
Directors, then submit the same
to the Shareholders Meeting.
Basically, neither the swap ratio
nor the acquisition price shall be
changed except in case of the
conditions for a change provided
in the contract (if any) and such
conditions have been publicly
disclosed. The swap ratio or
acquisition price may be changed
in the event of any of the

following:
2.3.1 The subject securities are
issued for capital increase,

issuance of convertible bonds,
stock grant, and issuance of
corporate bond with stock option,
issuance of preferred shares with
stock option, issuance of share

warrant certificates or other
equity securities.
2.3.2 Any of the participant

companies has done any act that
may affect the financial operation
of the company such as disposal
of its material assets.

2.3.3 The shareholders’ equity or
securities price of any of the
participant companies has been
affected by, among others, a
major disaster or material
technical change.

2.3.4 Any of the participant
companies has adjusted legal
buy-back of treasury stocks.

2.3.5 The principal participant
companies or the number of
participant companies has
changed.

2.3.6 The contract has provided
the other conditions for changes
and such conditions have been
publicly disclosed.

2.4 Provision of the contract:

The contract on the proposed

or underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price, or
cash or other property to be
distributed to shareholders before
the meetings of Board of
Directors, then submit the same to
the Shareholders Meeting.
Basically, neither the swap ratio
nor the acquisition price shall be
changed except in case of the
conditions for a change provided
in the contract (if any) and such
conditions have been publicly
disclosed. The swap ratio or
acquisition price may be changed
in the event of any of the

following:
2.3.1 The subject securities are
issued for capital increase,

issuance of convertible bonds,
stock grant, and issuance of
corporate bond with stock option,
issuance of preferred shares with
stock option, issuance of share
warrant certificates or other equity
securities.

2.3.2 Any of the participant
companies has done any act that
may affect the financial operation
of the company such as disposal
of its material assets.

2.3.3 The shareholders’ equity or
securities price of any of the
participant companies has been
affected by, among others, a
major disaster or material
technical change.

2.3.4 Any of the participant

companies has adjusted legal
buy-back of treasury stocks.

2.3.5 The principal participant
companies or the number of
participant companies has
changed.

2.3.6 The contract has provided
the other conditions for changes
and such conditions have been
publicly disclosed.

2.4 Provision of the contract:

The contract on the proposed

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares shall
provide the matters set forth

below, except those in accordance

47




merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares shall
provide the matters set forth
below, except those in
accordance with the provision of
Article 317-1 of the Company Act
and Article 22 of the Business
Merger Act:

2.4.1 Handling of defaults.

2.4.2 The procedure for issuance
of equity securities or buy-back of
treasury shares adopted by the
company to extinct as a result of
the proposed merger or to spin
off.

2.4.3 The amount of treasury
stocks the participant company
may legally buy back after the
swap ratio record date and such
company'’s procedure therefore.
2.4.4 Ways to handle matters
arising from a change of the
principal participant company or
the number of participant
companies.

2.4.5 The schedule for executing
the project and the scheduled
date of completion.

2.4.6 Procedure for handling
relevant matters and the date to
duly convene the relevant
Shareholders Meeting in case the

project is not completed as
scheduled.

2.5 Change of the participant
companies:

Where, after any of the
companies participating in the
proposed merger, spin-off,

acquisition or assignment of
shares has publicly disclosed the

information, there is another
company to participate in the
proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of

shares, the original participant
companies each shall re-new all
relevant proceedings or legal acts
except in the case of there being
reduction in the number of the
original participant companies
and the Board of Directors is
authorized to act accordingly by
the resolution of the
Shareholders Meeting.

with the provision of Article 317-1
of the Company Act and Article 22
of the Business Merger Act:

2.4.1 Handling of defaults.

2.4.2 The procedure for issuance
of equity securities or buy-back of
treasury shares adopted by the
company to extinct as a result of
the proposed merger or to spin
off.

2.4.3 The amount of treasury
stocks the participant company
may legally buy back after the
swap ratio record date and such
company’s procedure therefore.
2.4.4 Ways to handle matters
arising from a change of the
principal participant company or
the  number of participant
companies.

2.4.5 The schedule for executing
the project and the scheduled
date of completion.

2.4.6 Procedure for handling
relevant matters and the date to
duly convene the relevant
Shareholders Meeting in case the

project is not completed as
scheduled.
2.5 Change of the participant
companies:

Where, after any of the companies
participating in the proposed
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares has publicly
disclosed the information, there is
another company to participate in
the proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, the original participant
companies each shall re-new all
relevant proceedings or legal acts
except in the case of there being
reduction in the number of the
original participant companies and
the Board of Directors s
authorized to act accordingly by
the resolution of the Shareholders
Meeting.

2.6 The Company shall enter into
an agreement with the participant
company which is not a public
company and set the date to
convene the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors, execute
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2.6 The Company shall enter into
an agreement with the participant
company which is not a public
company and set the date to
convene the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors, execute
the prior non-disclosure
agreement, and act accordingly
in consideration of the change of
the participant companies in
accordance with paragraphs 2.1,
2.2 and 2.5 of this Article.

the prior non-disclosure
agreement, and act accordingly in
consideration of the change of the
participant companies in
accordance with paragraphs 2.1,
2.2 and 2.5 of this Article.

Article 15
Procedure for public disclosure
reports

1. Matters which should be
reported for public disclosure and
the relevant standards

1.1 Acquisition of real property, or
disposal of properties with,
related parties, or acquisition of
non-property assets from, or
disposal of non-property assets
with, related parties with the
trading value exceeding 20% of
the company’s paid-in capital or
10% of total assets, or NT$300
million. However, trading in
government bonds or bonds with
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
repurchase of money market
funds by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises and
subscription or redemption of
domestic money-market funds
issued by Securities Investment
Trust Enterprises are not
included.

1.2 Merger, spin-off, acquisition
or assignment of shares.

1.3 The amount of loss incurred
from the derivatives transaction
exceeds the limit on loss from all
contracts or the relevant
individual contract provided in the
relevant handling procedure.

Article 15
Procedure for public disclosure
reports

1. Matters which should be
reported for public disclosure and
the relevant standards

1.1 Acquisition of real property, or
disposal of properties with, related
parties, or acquisition of
non-property assets from, or
disposal of non-property assets
with, related parties with the
trading value exceeding 20% of
the company’s paid-in capital or
10% of total assets, or NT$300
million. However, trading in
government bonds or bonds with
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
repurchase of money market
funds by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises and
subscription or redemption of
domestic money-market funds are
not included.

1.2 Merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares.

1.3 The amount of loss incurred
from the derivatives transaction
exceeds the limit on loss from all
contracts or the relevant individual
contract provided in the relevant
handling procedure.

In line with
textual  revision
by the Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)
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1.4 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is
equipment for business use and
the transaction counterpart is a
non-related party and the
transaction value is above TWD 1
billion.

1.5 The subject real property is to
be acquired or disposed of by the
construction business division of
the Company for construction use
and the transaction counterpart is
a non-related party and the
transaction value is above
TWD500 million.

1.6 The subject real property to
be acquired is a building is to be
constructed on a self-owned land,
leased land, jointly constructed
and shared by units, jointly
constructed and shared by
percentage, jointly constructed
and sold by units and the
anticipated transaction value is
above TWD500 million.

1.7 Assets transactions or
disposals of credit claims in
financial institutions or investment
in PRC other than those provided
in the preceding six
subparagraphs, the transaction
value of which amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the
Company or TWD300 million
each, except for these
transactions:

1.7.1 The transaction is the
purchase or sale of government
bonds.

1.7.2 Professional investors, who
trade in securities at domestic or
overseas stock exchanges or
business outlets of securities
firms, or subscribe to common
corporate bonds and common
financial bonds without stock right
on the domestic primary market,
security brokers who subscribe to
securities out of the need for
underwriting business or in the
capacity as a assisting or

1.4 Assets transactions or
disposals of credit claims in
financial institutions or investment
in PRC other than those provided
in the preceding three
subparagraphs, the transaction
value of which amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the Company
or TWD300 million each, except
for these transactions:

1.4.1 The transaction is the
purchase or sale of government
bonds.

1.4.2 The transaction is for
investment purposes only of
securities traded on local or
foreign stock exchange or
over-the-counter market or
obtaining of securities by
securities firms on the primary
market.

1.4.3 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is bond
with re-purchase, re-sale
agreements. Subscription to and
redemption of domestic
money-market funds

1.4.4 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is
equipment for business use and
the transaction counterpart is a
non-related party and the
transaction value is less than
TWD500 million.

1.4.5 The subject real property is
to be acquired or disposed of by
the construction business division
of the Company for construction
use and the transaction
counterpart is a non-related party
and the transaction value is less
than TWD500 million.

1.4.6 The subject real property to
be acquired is a building is to be
constructed on a self-owned land,
leased land, jointly constructed
and shared by units, jointly
constructed and shared by
percentage, jointly constructed
and sold by units and the
anticipated transaction value is
less than TWD500 million.

1.5 The transaction value

Based upon the
consideration  of

FSC, to avoid
over frequent
declaration of
large scale
corporation
reducing
materiality of
information
disclosure,
disclosure
standard was
revised and

relocated to 1.4

Original 1.4.5
and 1.4.6 were
relocated to 1.5
and 1.6

Original
1.4.1,1.4.2 and
1.4.3 were
relocated to 1.7
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recommending security firm for
share listing on the Emerging
Stock Market, according to the
regulations of the ROC Gretai
Market (over-the-counter market)

1.7.3 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is bond
with re-purchase, re-sale
agreements. Subscription to and
redemption of domestic
money-market funds issued by
Securities Investment Trust

Enterprises.

1.8 The transaction value
provided in previous paragraph
1.8 above shall be calculated as
follows, where within one year
means within the year
immediately preceding the date
of occurrence of the proposed
transaction, excluding the items
which have been publicly
disclosed.

1.8.1 The value of each
transaction.

1.8.2 The total value of the
property of the same nature
acquired from or transferred to
the same transaction counterpart
within one year.

1.8.3 The total value of the real
property under the same
development project acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.8.4 The total value of the same
specific securities acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.9 The calculation for 10% of
total assets, as referred in the
handling procedure, is based on
the sum of assets included in
recent alone-basis financial

provided in previous paragraph

1.5 above shall be calculated as
follows, where within one year
means within the year
immediately preceding the date of
occurrence of the proposed
transaction, excluding the items
which have been publicly
disclosed.

1.5.1 The value of each
transaction.

1.5.2 The total value of the
property of the same nature
acquired from or transferred to the
same transaction counterpart
within one year.

1.5.3 The total value of the real
property under the same
development project acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.5.4 The total value of the same
specific securities acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.6 The calculation for 10% of
total assets, as referred in the
handling procedure, is based on
the sum of assets included in
recent alone-basis financial
reports, formulated according to
the “Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial. For
stocks without par value or with
par value other than NT$10, the
calculation of 20% of paid-in
capital for transaction value, as
referred in the procedure, is based
on 10% of the owner’s equity of
the parent firm.

2. Time period for making public
disclosure

If the acquisition or disposal of

In line with
textual  revision
by the Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)
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reports, formulated according to
the “Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial. For
stocks without par value or with
par value other than NT$10, the
calculation of 20% of paid-in
capital for transaction value, as
referred in the procedure, is
based on 10% of the owner’s
equity of the parent firm.

2. Time period for making public
disclosure

If the acquisition or disposal of
assets involves any item which
should be published pursuant to
paragraph 1 of this Article and the

transaction value meets the
public  disclosure  standards
provided in this Article, the

Company shall make a public
disclosure on such acquisition or
disposal of assets within two
days following the date of
occurrence of such transaction.

3. Procedure for making public
disclosure

3.1 The Company shall cause the
relevant information publicly
disclosed on the website
designated by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

3.2 The Company shall on a
monthly basis make a report on
the  derivatives  transactions
conducted in the month by itself
and its local subsidiaries which
are not public companies on the
website designated by the FSC in
the form and substance required
by the tenth day the following
month.

3.3 The Company shall renew the
entire public disclosure report in
case the public disclosure report
made contains any error or
omission within 2 days counting

assets involves any item which
should be published pursuant to
paragraph 1 of this Article and the
transaction value meets the public
disclosure standards provided in
this Article, the Company shall
make a public disclosure on such
acquisition or disposal of assets
within two days following the date
of occurrence of such transaction.

3. Procedure for making public
disclosure

3.1 The Company shall cause the
relevant information publicly
disclosed on the website
designated by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

3.2 The Company shall on a
monthly basis make a report on
the derivatives transactions
conducted in the month by itself
and its local subsidiaries which
are not public companies on the
website designated by the FSC in
the form and substance required
by the tenth day the following
month.

3.3 The Company shall renew the
entire public disclosure report in
case the public disclosure report
made contains any error or
omission.

3.4 The Company shall keep all
agreements, meeting minutes,
reference record book, appraisal
report, opinions of the certified
public account, legal counsel or
underwriter in the Company
relating to the acquisition or
disposal of any asset for a term of
at least five years except as
otherwise provided by law.

3.5 In the event of any of the
following after submitting the
public disclosure report in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph, the Company shall,
within two days following the
occurrence of such event, publicly

Additional
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inclusively from the date of
occurrence of the event.

3.4 The Company shall keep all
agreements, meeting minutes,
reference record book, appraisal
report, opinions of the certified
public account, legal counsel or
underwriter in the Company
relating to the acquisition or
disposal of any asset for a term
of at least five years except as
otherwise provided by law.

3.5 In the event of any of the
following after submitting the
public disclosure report in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph, the Company shall,
within two days following the

occurrence of such event,
publicly disclose the relevant
information on the website
designated by the Financial

Supervisory Commission:

3.5.1 There is change to the
relevant original signed
agreement(s) or the original
signed agreement(s) is
terminated or rescinded.

3.5.2 The proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares is not
completed as scheduled under
the relevant agreement.

3.5.3 There are changes for the
original reporting.

disclose the relevant information
on the website designated by the
Financial Supervisory
Commission:

3.5.1 There is change to the
relevant original signed
agreement(s) or the original
signed agreement(s) is terminated
or rescinded.

3.5.2 The proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares is not completed as
scheduled under the relevant
agreement.

3.5.3 There are changes for the
original reporting.

correction for
disclosure date,
in line with

revision by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)

Article 19

This Procedure was established
on 11 August 1989 and
subsequently amended as
follows:

(omission)

and the tenth amendment on 16
June 2017.

Article 19
This Procedure was established
on 11 August 1989 and

subsequently amended as follows:

(omission)

Addition of the
date for the
current revision
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